
Scrutiny Standing  
Panel Agenda 

1 

 
 
 

 
Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel 
Thursday, 22nd April, 2010 
 
Place: Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.00 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

A Hendry -  The Office of the Chief Executive 
Tel: 01992 564246  Email: ahendry@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors D Jacobs (Chairman), G Mohindra (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, 
J Collier, J Hart, J Philip, W Pryor, A Watts, Mrs L Wagland and J M Whitehouse 
 
 
A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN OF THE PANEL WILL BE HELD AT 

7.00 PM PRIOR TO THE MEETING 
 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive)  To report the appointment of any substitute 
members for the meeting. 
 

 3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive). To declare interests in any items on the agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter. 
 

 4. MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING  (Pages 3 - 10) 



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 22 April 2010 
 

2 

 
  To consider and agree the notes from the Panel held on 23 February 2010. 

 
 5. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 11 - 16) 

 
  (Chairman/Lead Officer) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed the Terms 

of Reference of this Panel and associated Work Programme. This is attached. The 
Panel are asked at each meeting to review both documents. 
 

 6. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2010-11  (Pages 17 - 88) 
 

  (Deputy Chief Executive) To consider the attached report. 
 

 7. EPPING FOREST TRACKER SURVEY 2009 RESEARCH REPORT  (Pages 89 - 92) 
 

  (Deputy Chief Executive) To Consider the attached report. Please remember to bring 
your Place Survey Tracker 2009/10 report with you. This has been sent out separately 
to all Members. 
 

 8. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 
  To consider which reports are ready to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee at its next meeting. 
 

 9. FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

  To note the forward programme of meeting dates of the Panel for 2010-11, which are: 
 
10th June 2010; 
09th September 2010; 
09th December 2010; 
17th January 2011; and 
10th March 2011. 
 

 



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTES OF A MEETING OF FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SCRUTINY 

PANEL
HELD ON TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2010 

IN COMMITTEE ROOM 1, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING 
AT 7.00  - 10.25 PM 

Members
Present:

D Jacobs (Chairman), G Mohindra (Vice-Chairman), J Philip, A Watts, 
Mrs L Wagland, J M Whitehouse and D Wixley 

Other members 
present:

R Bassett, Mrs D Collins, Mrs M Sartin, D Stallan, Ms S Stavrou and 
Mrs J H Whitehouse 

Apologies for 
Absence:

K Angold-Stephens, J Collier, J Hart and W Pryor 

Officers Present D Macnab (Deputy Chief Executive), J Gilbert (Director of Environment 
and Street Scene), A Hall (Director of Housing), R Palmer (Director of 
Finance and ICT), J Preston (Director of Planning and Economic 
Development), J Twinn (Assistant Director (Benefits)), P Maginnis 
(Assistant Director (Human Resources)), S Tautz (Performance 
Improvement Manager), B Moldon (Principal Accountant) and A Hendry 
(Democratic Services Officer) 

43. PRESENTATION ON THE EQUALITY FRAMEWORK FOR LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT  

The Panel welcomed Mr Stuart Elrick, who was working on behalf of the East of 
England Regional Assembly to provide support to local authorities in securing 
improvement against the requirements of the Equality Framework for Local 
Government. The Panel noted that the Equality Standard for Local Government 
(ESLG) had been established in 2001 as a performance and improvement framework 
to enable local authorities to mainstream equality but had since been revised to take 
into account feedback received and that the Equality Framework for Local 
Government (EFLG) replaced the previous ESLG in April 2009.  

Members were advised that the EFLG had been designed to build on existing work 
by:

• Providing a simpler framework, reducing the amount of process and 
introducing a more outcome focused approach; 

• Encouraging the use of the Framework so that it was proportional and 
relevant to the needs and circumstances of the authority; 

• Simplifying the self assessment process backed by peer challenge; 
• Integrating the public duties on race, disability and gender and providing a 

common performance framework for compliance; 
• Enabling local authorities and their local strategic partners to identify and 

analyse equality priorities for inclusion in their Local Area Agreements (LAAs) 
and complementing the new performance assessment framework and the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment which took effect  from April 2009; 

• Allowing authorities to ‘migrate’ their achievements under the original Equality 
Standard.

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 23 February 2010 

2

The Council had set a target to achieve Level 2 (achieving) of the EFLG by the end 
of 2009/10, performance against which was measured by a Local Performance 
Indicator (LPI 01).  

Mr Elrick said that councils should be seeking to secure ‘equality outcomes’ as part 
of everything they do, devising strategies and using the scrutiny process to make a 
difference. Equality and diversity was not about treating everybody the same, or 
providing an extra service for minorities or giving them more rights than others.  It 
was about getting to know and understand the needs and aspirations of all 
communities within the district; getting to know and understand the needs and 
aspirations of the people to whom the council deliver’s services; the Council should 
be meeting the needs and aspirations through working with them and its partners. 
The Council should have a workforce profile that represented its communities and 
service users; and should enable its employees to feel valued, empowered and 
supported in delivering the services. 

The Council should be publicising the good work it does, which the Audit 
Commission had already recognised using the website to inform the public and other 
authorities.  

Mr Elrick said the Council would also need to collect data and intelligence on its 
communities and to share this within the authority and with the Local Strategic 
Partnership and other stakeholders. Members were a good source of intelligence in 
this respect as they possessed local information about need within their individual 
wards.  Information should also be fed in from outside sources such as the Primary 
Care Trust, via the Local Development Framework Consultation and the Fire and 
Rescue Services. This type of data would be needed to inform future improvement 
plans. It was noted that corporate plans were living documents and would be updated 
on a regular basis.  

Members noted that a lot of authorities have an extra strand of ‘rurality’ to their 
service delivery apart from the six recognised equality strands of race, gender, 
disability, sexual orientation, age and religion or belief. ‘Rurality’ would indicate that 
they have a widely dispersed rural population and the problems encountered in 
accessing services. These strands should be used to improve services, but not al 
strands would apply to any on particular topic.  

These strands should be used to improve services, but not all stands would apply to 
any one particular topic. It should be remembered that excellence in service delivery 
gets the council Equality and Diversity good marks and not the other way round. 

Mr. Elrick reported that he was shortly to undertake an informal peer challenge of the 
Council’s current performance against the EFLG. The informal peer challenge 
process was not an inspection, but an opportunity for the identification of the 
Council’s successes and future challenges as it progresses against the Framework. 
The process would consider what had been achieved, what the authority’s 
challenges were, and the barriers that may hinder progress to embed equality and 
diversity throughout the organisation. The results of the peer challenge process 
would enable the development and prioritisation of appropriate action to take the 
Council forward against the Framework. 

The Chairman thanked Mr Elrick for this interesting and informative presentation. He 
then called for a 10 minute break before restarting the meeting. 

Page 4



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 23 February 2010 

3

44. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

The Panel noted that Councillor D Wixley was substituting for Councillor K Angold-
Stephens.

45. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

No declarations of interest were made. 

46. MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING  

The minutes form the previous meeting held on 12 January 2010 were agreed 
subject to the addition of Councillor Mohindra’s apologies being added to the 
minutes.

47. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  

The Panel noted that item 5 on the work programme, Essex Local Area Agreement, 
that the targets were contained in National and Local Indicators and it would be 
therefore better to have the report on an annual basis, when the country wide base 
targets are reviewed, instead of a quarterly one. 

They also noted that a follow up report for item 15, Customer Transformation, would 
be brought to the  April meeting. 

48. CORPORATE PLAN AND MEDIUM TERM AIMS 2010/11 - 2013/14 AND KEY 
OBJECTIVES 2010/11

Councillor R Bassett, the Performance Management Portfolio Holder, introduced the 
latest report on the development of the new Corporate Plan. They had tightened up 
work plans and objectives and had now got just twelve objectives for the plan and 
this had been broken down into sub-objectives, this was now more complete than the 
last time it was reviewed. It has now been circulated to Service Directors to enable 
an early start for next year. Ian Davidson from the Audit Commission has also seen it 
and said that it looked a lot better than the original draft. 

It was noted that a lot of work had been done in a short period of time and officers 
were thanked for this. This document now referenced other documents; they in turn 
should be referenced back. It should be a joined up process. 

As mission statements, the five overall aims were considered valid as they were 
backed up and supported by the twelve corresponding objectives. Some of the Panel 
thought that the five aims should be taken out and the twelve objectives used 
instead.  It was pointed out that the five aims were not objectives but statements as 
to what the Council were striving to achieve in general terms over the four year 
period of the plan. The twelve objectives pulled this all together. 

The Panel noted that the LSP were in the middle of a consultation on the new 
Sustainable Community Strategy and that would eventually feed into the document 

Page 5



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 23 February 2010 

4

as well.  The plans were a work in progress and this should not be considered to the 
final version. 

At the April meeting of this Panel they would like a schedule and timetable for the 
2011/12 to 2014/15 document and how the various strategies would slot into this. It 
would also make sense to refresh the medium term aims each year and not re-write 
them. They noted that there was a commitment for an annual refresh factored into 
the plans for the document. 

The Panel would also like the ‘Key Objectives’ to link up logically with the ‘Actions’ 
and the ‘Targets and how they are measured’. As presently illustrated, they did not 
quite link together, although it was accepted that this was a formatting issue with the 
production of the document and that the linkages would be explicit in the finalised 
version.

The Panel would also like the twelve objectives to be looked at and set into a priority 
order. The Performance management Portfolio Holder agreed to take this issue on 
board when reporting the proposed objectives to the cabinet in April 2010 for final 
adoption.

RESOLVED: 

(1) That the proposed structure and format of the Council’s new 
Corporate Plan for the period from 2010/11 to 2013/14 be agreed; and 

(2) That the Council’s proposed Medium Term Aims for 2010/11 to 
2013/14, and the draft key Objectives for 2010/11 be agreed subject 
to the comments made. 

(3) That the twelve objectives should be put into priority order. 

49. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL MONITORING  

The Director of Finance and ICT, Bob Palmer, introduced the report on the Quarterly 
Financial Monitoring. The report provided a comparison between the original profiled 
budgets for the period ended 31 December 2009 and the actual expenditure or 
income as applicable. 

The Panel noted that: 
• That there was likely to be little change between the originally expected use 

of General Fund Balances of £704,000 and the revised projection of 
£837,000;

• The salary schedule was shown on a Directorate basis and that there was a 
salary underspend of half a million pounds. The most significant underspend 
was in planning services; 

• The pay award was lower than anticipated; 
• Building Control was still suffering; 
• Investment income – the bank rate was still at 0.5% and it will not do as well 

as in previous years; 
• Recoveries from the Heritable Bank would be at around 85p in the pound; 
• Currently MOTs yield a surplus to the general fund of a little over £50,000; 
• The Housing repair fund was running at an underspend at present; 

Page 6



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 23 February 2010 

5

The Panel then went through the figures in detail and thanked officers for the work 
done on the presentations by Mr Maddock who had made it easier to read and 
understand. 

RESOLVED: 

That the revenue and capital financial monitoring report for the third quarter of 
2009/10 be noted. 

50. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - QUARTER 3  

The Performance Improvement Manager, Mr S Tautz informed the Panel that the first 
part of the report was to review the performance of the Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) for the first nine months for 2009/10. The second part of the report was to 
review the KPIs for 2010/11 with a view to adoption of relevant indicators and targets 
reflecting the Council’s core business and its corporate priorities. The Panel also 
noted noted details of the linkages between the proposed KPIs for 2010/11 and the 
Council’s draft Medium Term Aims for 2010/11 to 2013/14. 

The Panel went through the indicators individually, noting: 

NI014 Reducing Avoidable Contact - noted that no target was required to be set for 
this indicator. 

LPI 01 Level of the Equality Framework for Local Government to which the 
Council conforms – a ‘peer challenge’ of the Council’s equality performance was to 
be undertaken in early 2010 and it was considered appropriate to retain the Level 2 
target for 2010/11, [pending the outcome of this exercise. 

LPI 50 Number of elderly people participating in physical activity – the panel 
noted the low target was due to it not including some of the programmes when it first 
started. The target will be revised next year. 

LPI28 Number of working days lost due to sickness absence – noted that each 
quarterly figure had decreased and it was heading in the right direction. 

LPI 40 Occupation rate of commercial and industrial property – asked if the 
figures were the number of occupancy days or just a snapshot as at 31 March. 
Officers were unsure and would find out for the Panel and report back. 

NI192 Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, re-cycling and 
composting – asked why the performance levels were different on Mondays, the 
Panel was told that Mondays included collections from flats etc. and Mondays were 
always 3 to 4% down. The full reasons were not completely clear. 

NI195 (a) Improved street and environmental cleanliness (Litter) – noted it was 
proving stubborn to get the figures below 11% / 10.5%. 10% was average for District 
Councils. Initiatives were being taken forward and a public education exercise was 
being undertaken. 

NI195 (b) Improved street and environmental cleanliness (Detritus) – getting to 
the target was difficult because of the recent weather. 

Page 7



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 23 February 2010 

6

NI180 Number of changes of circumstances which affect customers 
‘Housing/Council Tax Benefit entitlement’ within the year – Noted there should 
be no ticks on the sheet it should all be crosses. Asked if the target was 
unrealistically low the officer said that it was a new target and they were unsure as to 
what target to set. It would be reviewed next year. 

LPI23 (a) Capital Projects ‘Cost’ – Noted that this was to be deleted and replaced. 

LPI53 Number of completed fraud investigations carried out by the Benefits 
Investigation Team – noted that an investigation officer had been recruited but 
another one had resigned – so the section was still one down. 

NI158 Percentage of Non-decent council homes – Noted that the Council had 
reached a milestone and at the end of March there will be no non-decent homes in 
the District. 

LPI04 Rent collected as a proportion of rents owed on Housing Revenue 
Account dwellings – noted that the Courts were being more lenient than in the past. 

NI157(c) Processing of planning applications –‘Other’ types – The Council is 
now within target and is the highest ever achieved. Good news. 

NI86 Per capita reduction in CO2 emissions in the local authority area – Noted 
that green issues were very difficult to monitor as officers have to wait two years 
before any figures come through from the government. To take this off as there is no 
data at years end. The same applied to NI194 Air Quality. 

The Panel noted that the results of the annual indicators were still to come in.  

The Panel wanted the indicators to be graded in order of importance to the Council 
and of the indicators that the Council has no control over. Officers said they would do 
some modelling and bring it to the next meeting. 

Proposed targets for 2010/11: 

NI157(b) processing of planning applications as measured against targets - to 
set targets when planning reports come to scrutiny. 

NI154 Net additional homes provided – to set the target at 180. 

NI186 Per capita reduction in CO2 emission in the local authority area – to set 
the target at 8%. 

LPI 45 – Numbers of appeals allowed against refusal of planning applications – 
to leave the target as it is and review again in June, depending on the government 
and policies in place at that time. 

RESOLVED: 

(1) That the Council’s performance for the first nine months of 2009/10 in 
relation to the Key Performance Indicators adopted for the year, be 
noted;

(2) Subject to the concurrence of the Finance and Performance 
Management Cabinet Committee: 

Page 8



Finance and Performance Management Scrutiny Panel Tuesday, 23 February 2010 

7

(a) the proposed Key Performance Indicators for 2010/11 (and 
draft targets) be agreed subject to the amendments listed 
above;

(b) the identification of a corporate KPI improvement target for 
2010/11 be deferred until the next meeting of the Panel, in 
order that additional work can be undertaken to link the 
proposed indicators to the Council’s proposed Key Objectives 
for 2010/11 in terms of relevance and priority;

(c) that proposals for the revision of KPI LPI 23 (a) capital 
projects, be agreed; and  

(3) That the linkages between the proposed KPIs for 2010/11 and the 
Council’s draft Medium Term Aims for 2010/11 to 2013/14 be noted. 

51. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

To report back to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with a general update on the 
reports considered at this meeting. 

52. FUTURE MEETINGS  

The date for the next meeting was noted. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



June 2009 

TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL 
 
 
Title:  Finance and Performance Management  
 
 
Status:  Standing Panel 
 
 
Terms of Reference: 
 
Performance Management 
1. To review statutory and local performance indicator outturns for the previous year at 

the commencement of each municipal year, and to determine the following on an 
annual basis: 

 
(a) A basket of ‘Key’ Performance Indicators (KPIs) important to the Council’s 

core business and corporate priorities; and 
 
(b) The monitoring frequency of the KPIs identified by the Panel for the year; 

 
2. To monitor performance against the adopted KPIs throughout the year; and to make 

recommendations for corrective action in relation to poorly performing indicators; 
 
Council Plan 
3. To undertake an annual review of performance against objectives, targets and 

actions contained in the Council Plan for 2006 to 2010; 
 
 
Public Consultation 
 
4. To develop arrangements to directly engage the community in commenting on and 

shaping the future direction of services to make them more responsive to local 
needs, including the development of proposals for effective consultation through an 
annual community conference;  

 
5. To annually review the consultation exercises undertaken by the council over the 

previous year. 
 
Finance 
 
6. To consider the draft budgets for each portfolio and in so doing to evaluate and rank 

proposals for either enhancing or reducing services. Members will need to ensure 
consistency between wider policy objectives and financial demands. 

 
7. To consider financial monitoring reports on key areas of income and expenditure for 

each portfolio.  
 
ICT  
8. To monitor and review progress on the implementation of all major ICT systems: 

• Review of the Web-Casting System. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



June 2009 

 
 
Value For Money 
9.  To consider the annual Value for Money Analysis, and to identify any areas where 
further detailed analysis may be required to be undertaken by a Task and Finish Panel 
during the year. 
 
Essex Local Area Agreement 
10. To monitor performance against the performance indicators contained within the 
second Essex Local Area Agreement, that the Council ‘has regard to’; and to make 
recommendations for corrective action in relation to poorly performing indicators. 
 
Equality and Diversity 
11. To undertake an annual review of progress towards the implementation of the 
Council’s Race Equality, Gender Equality, and Disability Equality Schemes, and 
performance in relation to other equality and diversity issues. 
 
 
 
Chairman:  Cllr Derek Jacobs 
 
 

Page 12



As at April 2010 

 
Finance and Performance Management Standing Panel –  

Work Programme 2009-2010 
Item Report Deadline / 

Priority Progress / Comments Programme of 
Future Meetings 

(1) Key Performance Indicators – 
Performance Outturn 2008/09 

Performance report to 
be considered at year 
end. 
 

Outturn KPI performance report for 2008/09 to be 
considered at the meeting to be held on 16 June 2009. 
Performance report to be produced for inclusion in E-
Annual Report in place of former Best Value Performance 
Plan. 

(2) Key Performance Indicators – 
Performance Monitoring 2009/10 

Performance report to 
be considered on a 
quarterly basis. 
. 

Quarterly KPI performance report for 2009/10 to be 
considered at the meetings to be held on 25 August 2009, 
17 November 2009 and 23 February 2010. 

(3) Quarterly Financial Monitoring Reports to be 
considered on a 
quarterly basis. 

First quarter Information to be considered August 09, 2nd 
quarter in November 09 and 3rd quarter figures at the 
February ’10 meeting. 

(4) Performance (Services to be 
scrutinised in Rotation) Ongoing 

The Panel looked at the Council’s land and 
accommodation strategy at its meeting in November 2007. 
Further issues for consideration may be identified during 
the year. 

(5)  Essex Local Area Agreement 
(LAA) 2008-2011 

Relevant performance 
reports to be 
considered on an 
annual basis. 

Performance reports in respect of the indicators within the 
LAA that the Council ‘has regard to’ to be considered as 
part of regular KPI monitoring arrangements. 

(6) Council Plan 2006-2010 
Performance Monitoring  

Performance report 
considered on an 
annual basis.  

Performance report for third year of the Council Plan 
(2008/09) - considered at the June 2009 meeting. 

 
16 June 2009 
25 August 
17 November 
 
12 January 2010 
23 February 
22 April P

age 13



As at April 2010 

(7) Value for Money Cost and 
Performance Analysis 

Analysis updated on an 
annual basis to reflect 
latest available cost 
and performance 
information. 

Revised arrangements for consideration of the Value for 
Monday Analysis agreed in March 2009. The Audit 
Commission’s VFM Profile tool is updated during late 
February early March each year, and in order for the VFM 
analysis to be developed from this tool, the analysis will be 
considered during the April-June cycle each year. 

(8) Annual Consultation Plan  Report considered on 
an annual basis. 

Last completed August 08. Consultation Plan considered 
at first meeting of each municipal year. Report 
considered June 2009.  

(9) Detailed Portfolio Budgets Went to the January 
2010 meeting. 

Considered in January ‘10 - Annual review of the Portfolio 
Holders Budgets. 

(10) Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 

To go to the February 
2010 meeting. 

Financial Issues Paper to 17 November 2009. Review the 
Council’s medium term financial strategy 12 January 2010. 

(11) Equality and Diversity -  
Monitoring and Progress  Report considered on 

an annual basis. 
Monitoring report in respect of the Council’s Equality 
Schemes and progress with equality issues to be 
considered at the meeting to be held on 22 April 2010. 

(12) Capital Outturn 2008/09 and 
use of transitional relief in 
2008/09 

Went to the June 2009 
meeting 

Considered at the June 2009 meeting. 

(13) Provisional revenue Outturn 
2008/09 

Went to the June 2009 
meeting 

Considered at the June 2009 meeting 

(14) Fee and Charges Report considered at 
the November 2009 
meeting 

Considered at the November 2009 meeting. 

P
age 14



As at April 2010 

(15)  Customer transformation 
T&F Panel work 

Report went to 17 
November 2009 
meeting. A follow up 
report to be considered 
at a subsequent 
meeting 

Work of the disbanded the Customer Transformation Task 
and Finish Panel was placed with the Finance and 
Performance Management Standing Scrutiny Panel. The 
Cabinet at their meeting in February 2009 agreed the 
recommendations with the proviso at (3) that: 
“(1) That, given the increasing importance of the Council’s 
Website for communication, information and electronic 
interactions, the level of dedicated resource to the 
maintenance and development of the Council’s Website 
be increased; 
(2) That a District Development Fund bid be made to fund 
an additional Grade 5 Website Support Officer on a three-
year fixed term contract as part of the budget process for 
2009/10, at an estimated cost of £25,000 per annum 
subject to job evaluation; and 
(3) That the Task and Finish Panel on Customer 
Transformation be requested to reconvene and further 
prioritise the remaining seven recommendations of the 
original report.” 
 

 

 

P
age 15



P
age 16

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Report to the Finance and 
Performance Management Scrutiny 
Panel 
 
Date of meeting: 22 April 2010 
 
 
Portfolio: Performance Management (Councillor R. Bassett) 
 
Subject: Key Performance Indicators 2010/11 
 
Responsible Officer: S. Tautz (01992 564180) 
 
Democratic Services Officer:  A. Hendry (01992 564246) 
 
 
 

Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 

(1) That the Council’s full suite of National and Local Performance Indicators 
for 2010/11, including provisional targets, be noted; 

 
(2) That the Scrutiny Panel consider and agree: 

 
(a) the adoption of a range of ‘Key’ Performance Indicators for 2010/11; 

and 
 
(b) the adoption of a corporate target for the achievement of year-on-year 

improvement against the adopted Key Performance Indicators for 
2010/11. 

 
Executive Summary: 
 
1. (Deputy Chief Executive) A range of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) is adopted 

each year, which are regarded as crucial to the Council’s core business and its 
corporate priorities. The aim of the KPIs is to focus improvement on key objectives and 
achieve comparable performance with that of the top performing local authorities 
(where appropriate), and to then maintain or improve further on that level of 
performance. Where possible, progress in achieving target performance in respect of 
the KPIs is reported to the Scrutiny Panel and the relevant Portfolio Holder at the 
conclusion of each quarter. 

 
2. The Council has implemented arrangements for the alignment of it’s business, budget, 

and workforce planning and development processes into a clear framework to enable 
the authority to focus on priorities, improve performance and the way that performance 
is managed, and to improve communication and consultation on key priorities. As a 
consequence of these new arrangements, it is necessary to identify and adopt KPIs for 
2010/11 without undue delay.  

 
Reasons for Proposed Decision: 
 
3. To enable members to contribute to the review of the KPI suite for 2010/11, with a view 

to the adoption of relevant indicators and targets reflecting the Council’s core business 
and community priorities. 

 
 

 Agenda Item 6

Page 17



 2 

Other Options for Action: 
 
4. The Council could decide not to adopt any KPIs for 2010/11, although this might mean 

that opportunities for improvement were lost. Failure to monitor and review 
performance, and to take corrective action where necessary, could have negative 
implications for the Council’s reputation and for judgements made about the authority in 
the Comprehensive Area Assessment and similar corporate assessment processes.  

 
Report: 
 
5. At its last meeting, the Scrutiny Panel gave initial consideration to the adoption of a 

suite of KPIs for 2010/11. At that time, members requested that the current suite of 
KPIs be reviewed in terms of relevance and priority, to ensure that the indicators were 
appropriately focused on the Council’s key objectives and local community priorities. 
This report presents the results of further work in this respect. 

 
6. Since the last meeting of the Scrutiny Panel, the Council has received notification from 

the Department for Communities and Local Government of the deletion of the following 
National Indicators (NI) which had been adopted as KPIs for 2009/10, with effect from 1 
April 2010: 

 
NI 14 Reducing avoidable contact 
NI 170 Previously developed vacant land 
NI 180 Housing/Council Tax Benefit – Changes of circumstance 
NI 184 Food establishments broadly compliant with food hygiene law 

 
7. Although there is no longer a statutory requirement to report performance against these 

indicators, it is considered that NI 14 (Avoidable Contact) has proved to be a useful tool 
for the identification of areas for service improvement over the last two years. Given 
that systems are already in place for the assessment of levels of avoidable contact 
across relevant service areas, the Corporate Executive Forum wishes to explore 
options for maintaining the spirit and purpose of NI 14 through the development of a 
replacement local performance indicator, and it is intended that a further report in this 
respect will be made to a future meeting of the Scrutiny Panel.  

 
8. The schedule of individual indicators and targets previously considered by the Scrutiny 

Panel is attached as Appendix 1 to the report, but has been amended by the removal of 
the four deleted National Indicators referred to in paragraph 6 above (including NI 14 
for the time being).  This schedule will comprise the Council’s full suite of National and 
Local Performance Indicators (LPI) for 2010/11, and excludes those indicators informed 
by the bi-annual ‘Place Survey’ or other survey measures (which are generally subject 
to separate reporting arrangements). 

 
9. In order to ensure that the KPIs to be adopted for 2010/11 are appropriately focused on 

the Council’s key objectives and local community priorities, a mapping exercise has 
been undertaken to demonstrate the linkages between each of the indicators set out in 
Appendix 1, with the Council’s new Medium-Term Aims for 2010/11 to 2013/14, the 
authority’s Key Priority Objectives for 2010/11, and the priorities identified in the 
emerging Sustainable Community Strategy for the district. The results of this mapping 
exercise for each indicator are attached as Appendix 2, to enable the Scrutiny Panel to 
further consider the adoption of KPIs for 2010/11. 

 
10. The full indicator suite for 2010/11 has also recently been reviewed by the Performance 

Management Portfolio Holder, who has sought to identify a subset of priority indicators 
that could be monitored regularly by Portfolio Holders and the Scrutiny Panel, in order 
to give an indication of the progress that the Council is making in key areas. The 
Portfolio Holder’s draft proposed KPI suite for 2010/11 is as follows: 

Page 18



 3 

 
NATIONAL INDICATORS 

1.  NI 154 Net additional homes provided 
2.  NI 155 Affordable homes delivered (gross) 
3.  NI 157(a) Processing of planning applications - ‘Major’ applications 
4.  NI 158 Percentage of decent council homes 
5.  NI 159 Supply of ready to develop housing sites 
6.  NI 179 Value for money 
7.  NI 181 Housing/Council Tax Benefit – Claims processing 
8.  NI 191 Residual household waste per household 
9.  NI 192 Household waste recycled and composted 
10.  NI 195(a) Improved street and environmental cleanliness (Graffiti) 
11.  NI 195(b) Improved street and environmental cleanliness (Litter) 

LOCAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
12.  LPI 4 Rent collection (Housing Revenue Account dwellings) 
13.  LPI 5 Re-letting of council dwellings 
14.  LPI 7 Emergency repairs (Housing Revenue Account dwellings) 
15.  LPI 8 Urgent repairs (Housing Revenue Account dwellings) 
16.  LPI  LPI  9 Urgent repairs (Housing Revenue Account dwellings) 
17.  LPI  LPI 10 Satisfaction with repairs (Housing Revenue Account dwellings) 
18.  LPI 13 Payment of invoices 
19.  LPI 14 Council Tax collection 
20.  LPI 15 National non-domestic rates collection 
21.  LPI 16 Housing/Council Tax Benefit – Claims processing (Time) 
22.  LPI 17 Housing/Council Tax Benefit – Changes of circumstance 
23.  LPI 44 Milestones within Local Development Scheme 
24.  LPI 50 Participation in physical activity programmes 
25.  LPI 51 Complaints response (Enviro-Crime and Rapid Response) 
26.  LPI 52(a) Recycling facilities (communal buildings) – Percentage surveyed 
27.  LPI 52(b) Recycling facilities (communal buildings) – Percentage implemented 
28.  LPI 53 Housing/Council Tax Benefit – Fraud investigation 

 
11. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to consider the Portfolio Holder’s proposals, as part of 

the determination of the KPI suite for 2010/11. The mapping exercise (Appendix 2) 
demonstrates the linkages between each of the indicators and relevant corporate and 
community priorities, and it is considered that the KPIs should comprise: 

 
(a) those NIs where the Council has sole responsibility for the indicator (i.e. where it 

is directly responsible for service provision and has collection and reporting 
responsibility), but not those NIs to which the Council contributes data but for 
which it has no reporting responsibility; and 

 
(b) those LPIs that reflect local priorities, but which are not covered by the NI set. 

 
12. In considering the adoption of a more concise KPI suite for 2010/11, members are 

reminded that for 2009/10, it was considered that greater focus needed to be placed on 
improving performance against the whole spectrum of performance indicators, rather 

Page 19



 4 

than against a ‘basket’ of selected indicators. All relevant National Indicators and a 
range of appropriate Local Performance Indicators were therefore designated as KPIs 
for 2009/10, and these now form the Council’s full suite of National and Local 
Performance Indicators for 2010/11. If members are minded to adopt a smaller and 
more focused suite of KPIs for 2010/11, the Council will still be required to monitor and 
report its performance against those indicators that do not form part of the new KPI set. 
For those indicators, which would no longer be subject of regular reports to the Panel, 
performance reports would be deposited in the Members’ Room each quarter and 
would be formally reported to the Scrutiny Panel and the Finance and Performance 
Management Cabinet Committee at year-end only. 

 
13. The provisional targets for each existing National and Local Indicator for 2010/11, as 

proposed by each responsible service director on the basis of the third quarter (and 
estimated outturn) position for 2009/10, are also set out in Appendix 1 to this report. 
The proposed targets have been reviewed and endorsed by the Corporate Executive 
Forum (CEF). As in previous years, service directors will be required to develop 
improvement plans for all of the adopted KPIs for 2010/11, setting out actions to be 
implemented in order to achieve or maintain target performance, and to reflect year on 
year changes in service delivery. In view of the corporate importance attached to the 
KPIs, the improvement plans will considered, agreed and monitored by CEF. Although 
it is not yet known whether the Council’s target of achieving top-quartile performance 
for at least 80% of the KPIs for 2009/10 has been achieved, the Scrutiny Panel is also 
requested to consider and agree an overall KPI performance improvement target for 
2010/11.   

 
14. As part of process of agreeing the KPI Improvement Plans for 2010/11, CEF will in due 

course also review the provisional targets for each KPI with reference to outturn data 
for 2009/10 when this available. As in 2009/10, it is likely that some targets will be 
revised from the provisional targets currently identified. 

 
15. The Scrutiny Panel is requested to consider and adopt an appropriate range of  Key 

Performance Indicators for 2010/11, including provisional targets, and to agree an 
overall KPI performance improvement target for 2010/11. The targets provisionally 
identified for each indicator are based on third quarter performance for 2009/10 (April to 
December 2009), and a full outturn report for the indicators will be made to the next 
meeting.  

 
Resource Implications: 
 
The respective service director will identify the resource requirements for the adopted KPIs 
for 2010/11, as part of the required KPI Improvement Plan for the year. 
 
Legal and Governance Implications: 
 
There are no legal implications or Human Rights Act issues arising from the 
recommendations in this report, which ensure that the Council monitors progress against its 
KPIs, and that proposals for corrective action are considered in respect of areas of current 
under-performance. 
 
Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications: 
 
The respective Service Director will have identified any implications arising from proposals for 
corrective action in respect of KPI areas of current under-performance set out in this report, 
in respect of the Council’s commitment to the Nottingham Declaration for climate change, the 
corporate Safer, Cleaner and Greener initiative, or any Crime and Disorder issues within the 
district. 
 
 
 

Page 20



 5 

Consultation Undertaken: 
 
The targets and performance information set out in this report have been submitted by each 
appropriate Service Director, and have been reviewed and considered by the Corporate 
Executive Forum. This report was made available to the Chairman of the Scrutiny Panel and 
the Performance Management Portfolio Holder in advance of the preparation of this agenda. 
 
Background Papers:  
 
None. 
 
Impact Assessments: 
 
Risk Management 
 
The respective service director will identify any risk management issues arising from 
proposals for improvement in respect of specific KPIs 
 
Equality and Diversity: 
 
Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for relevance to the 
Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially adverse equality implications? 

 
No. However, the respective Service Director will identify any risk management issues arising 
from proposals for improvement in respect of specific KPIs  
 
Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment process, has a 
formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? N/A 

 
What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process? 
N/A 
 
How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been 
addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group? N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



R
ef

:
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

T
ar

g
et

20
08

/0
9

O
u

tt
u

rn
20

08
/0

9
T

ar
g

et
20

09
/1

0

Q
u

ar
te

r
3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

20
10

/1
1

C
o

m
m

en
ts

/J
u

st
if

ic
at

io
n

fo
r

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

N
I1

54

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

14
4.

00
15

7.
00

14
4.

00
93

.0
0

18
0.

00

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

to
ta

lf
or

 th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
ha

s
no

t
re

ac
he

d 
ta

rg
et

le
ve

ls
 s

o
fa

r,
it

is
ex

pe
ct

ed
 th

at
 s

ev
er

al
ho

us
in

g 
si

te
s

w
ill

co
m

m
en

ce
nu

m
er

ou
s

un
its

w
ith

in
 th

e
ne

xt
 tw

o
m

on
th

s.
 It

 is
 c

le
ar

 th
at

ho
us

eb
ui

ld
in

g
ha

s 
su

ffe
re

d
as

a
re

su
lt

of
 th

e
ec

on
om

ic
re

ce
ss

io
n,

bu
t

th
at

bu
ild

in
gs

 s
til

l c
on

tin
ue

s.

N
I1

55
D

ire
ct

or
of

H
ou

si
ng

66
.0

0
20

.0
0

57
.0

0
22

.0
0

70
.0

0

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
is

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
be

ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
It 

is
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

pr
ed

ic
t

th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
af

fo
rd

ab
le

ho
m

es
 to

be
pr

ov
id

ed
in

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
te

co
no

m
ic

cl
im

at
e,

 s
in

ce
 th

er
e

is
a

de
pe

nd
en

ce
on

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
'b

ui
ld

in
g

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

.
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
pr

op
os

ed
 ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

is
 c

on
si

de
re

d
re

as
on

ab
le

,b
as

ed
on

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
tn

um
be

r
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
ho

m
es

 th
at

ha
ve

re
ci

ev
ed

pl
an

ni
ng

pe
rm

is
si

on
.

N
I1

56
D

ire
ct

or
of

H
ou

si
ng

10
4.

00
70

.0
0

10
0.

00
51

.0
0

60
.0

0

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
ha

s
be

en
re

du
ce

d
in

re
co

gn
iti

on
of

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

re
du

ce
d

nu
m

be
rs

of
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

in
 te

m
po

ra
ry

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n.

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
ar

e
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

ie
s

ov
er

 th
e

im
pa

ct
of

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
te

co
no

m
ic

 c
lim

at
e

on
fu

tu
re

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s
le

ve
ls

.

N
I1

57
(a

)

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

80
.7

1%
59

.3
8%

81
.0

0%
60

.8
7%

81
.0

0%

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

ag
ai

ns
t t

hi
s

in
di

ca
to

r
is

vo
la

til
e

du
e 

to
 th

e
lo

w
nu

m
be

r
of

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

re
ce

iv
ed

,w
hi

ch
ar

e
us

ua
lly

ar
e

m
or

e 
co

m
pl

ex
an

d 
tim

e
co

ns
um

in
g 

to
de

te
rm

in
e,

an
d

ar
e.

so
m

et
im

es
de

la
ye

d
un

til
a

le
ga

l
ag

re
em

en
t,

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

m
ak

e 
th

e
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ta
cc

ep
ta

bl
e,

is
 s

ig
ne

d.
Im

pr
ov

ed
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 c
ou

ld
be

ac
hi

ev
ed

by
no

t s
ee

ki
ng

 s
uc

h
ag

re
em

en
ts

,f
ul

l s
ta

ffi
ng

le
ve

ls
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e

fil
lin

g
of

a
po

st
un

til
re

ce
nt

ly
se

co
nd

ed
 to

 th
e 

F
or

w
ar

d
P

la
nn

in
g 

se
ct

io
n,

m
ak

in
g

fu
lle

r
us

e
of

pr
e-

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n

m
ee

tin
gs

,a
nd

no
de

fe
rr

al
s

at
A

re
a

P
la

ns
S

ub
-C

om
m

itt
ee

m
ee

tin
gs

. I
t i

s 
th

er
ef

or
e

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
fo

r 
th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
10

/1
1 

sh
ou

ld
re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e

as
fo

r
20

09
/1

0.

N
I1

57
(b

)

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

83
.6

6%
79

.6
4%

84
.0

0%
79

.4
2%

To
be

 s
et

in
Ju

ne
20

10
(s

ee
co

m
m

en
t)

A
 c

on
si

st
en

to
ut

tu
rn

ha
s

be
en

ac
hi

ev
ed

fo
r 

th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
ov

er
la

st
fe

w
ye

ar
s,

of
ju

st
un

de
r

80
%

.T
he

 ta
rg

et
fo

r 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t y
ea

r
is

no
t

ac
hi

ev
ab

le
un

le
ss

de
le

ga
te

d
po

w
er

s
ar

e
al

te
re

d 
to

al
lo

w
m

or
e

of
 th

is
ty

pe
of

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

to
be

de
al

tw
ith

by
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
of

P
la

nn
in

g
an

d
E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
Th

e 
F

in
an

ce
an

d
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
S

cr
ut

in
y

P
an

el
ha

s
pr

ev
io

us
ly

ag
re

ed
 th

at
 th

e
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n

of
a 

tr
ag

et
fo

r
th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
10

/1
1 

sh
ou

ld
aw

ai
tf

ur
th

er
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n

of
de

le
ga

te
d

au
th

or
ity

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

by
 th

e
P

la
nn

in
g

S
er

vi
ce

s
S

cr
ut

in
y

P
an

el
in

Ju
ne

20
10

.

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
A

N
D

L
O

C
A

L
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
S

20
10

/1
1

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S

N
et

ad
di

tio
na

lh
om

es
pr

ov
id

ed
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
en

co
ur

ag
es

a
gr

ea
te

r
su

pp
ly

of
ne

w
ho

m
es

 to
ad

dr
es

s
lo

ng
-t

er
m

ho
us

in
g

af
fo

rd
ab

ili
ty

is
su

es
,

an
d

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e
ne

ti
nc

re
as

e
in

dw
el

lin
g 

st
oc

k
ov

er
on

e 
ye

ar
(H

IG
H

).

N
um

be
r

of
af

fo
rd

ab
le

ho
m

es
de

liv
er

ed
(G

ro
ss

).
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

pr
om

ot
es

an
in

cr
ea

se
in

 th
e 

su
pp

ly
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
ho

us
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h
ne

w
-b

ui
ld

co
m

pl
et

io
ns

, c
ha

ng
es

of
us

e
an

d 
co

nv
er

si
on

s
(H

IG
H

).

N
um

be
r

of
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

liv
in

g
in

 te
m

po
ra

ry
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

m
on

ito
rs

pr
og

re
ss

 to
w

ar
ds

re
du

ci
ng

 th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

in
te

m
po

ra
ry

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n

pr
ov

id
ed

un
de

r
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s

le
gi

sl
at

io
n

(L
O

W
).

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

of
pl

an
ni

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
as

m
ea

su
re

d
ag

ai
ns

t t
ar

ge
ts

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

en
su

re
s 

th
at

lo
ca

lp
la

nn
in

g
au

th
or

iti
es

de
te

rm
in

e
m

aj
or

pl
an

ni
ng

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

in
a 

tim
el

y
m

an
ne

r
(w

ith
in

 th
irt

ee
n

w
ee

ks
)

(H
IG

H
).

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

of
pl

an
ni

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
as

m
ea

su
re

d
ag

ai
ns

t t
ar

ge
ts

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

en
su

re
s 

th
at

lo
ca

lp
la

nn
in

g
au

th
or

iti
es

de
te

rm
in

e
‘m

in
or

’
pl

an
ni

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
in

a 
tim

el
y

m
an

ne
r

(w
ith

in
ei

gh
tw

ee
ks

)
(H

IG
H

).

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

an
d

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

(H
IG

H
/L

O
W

)

Page 23



R
ef

:
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

T
ar

g
et

20
08

/0
9

O
u

tt
u

rn
20

08
/0

9
T

ar
g

et
20

09
/1

0

Q
u

ar
te

r
3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

20
10

/1
1

C
o

m
m

en
ts

/J
u

st
if

ic
at

io
n

fo
r

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

an
d

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

(H
IG

H
/L

O
W

)

N
I1

57
(c

)

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

92
.5

7%
89

.8
8%

93
.0

0%
93

.6
4%

94
.0

0%

Th
e

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 c
ov

er
ed

by
 th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

ar
e,

in
 th

e
m

ai
n,

 th
e 

sm
al

le
r

ty
pe

of
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t(
ho

us
eh

ol
d

ex
te

ns
io

ns
, c

ha
ng

es
of

us
e,

ad
ve

rt
is

em
en

ts
et

c.
).

V
irt

ua
lly

al
la

pp
lic

at
io

ns
de

le
ga

te
d 

to
 th

e
H

ea
d

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
ta

re
be

in
g

de
te

rm
in

ed
w

ith
in

 th
e

ta
rg

et
 ti

m
e,

an
d 

th
e

fil
lin

g
of

 th
e

un
til

re
ce

nt
ly

po
st

 s
ec

on
de

d 
to

 th
e

F
or

w
ar

d
P

la
n 

se
ct

io
n,

w
ou

ld
 s

lig
ht

ly
im

pr
ov

e
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

an
d

fre
e-

up
m

or
e 

se
ni

or
of

fic
er

 ti
m

e 
to

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

on
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

th
e 

tr
ag

et
 s

et
fo

r
N

I
15

7(
a)

.A
 s

m
al

li
nc

re
as

e
in

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
is

pr
op

os
ed

fo
r

20
10

/1
1.

N
I1

58
D

ire
ct

or
of

H
ou

si
ng

1.
50

%
1.

50
%

0.
00

%
Y

ea
r-

en
d

0.
00

%

Th
e

G
ov

er
nm

en
t's

 D
ec

en
tH

om
es

Ta
rg

et
 c

om
es

 to
an

en
d

in
20

10
,a

nd
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
is

on
 ta

rg
et

 to
ha

ve
no

no
n-

de
ce

nt
ho

m
es

by
 M

ar
ch

20
10

.
Th

e 
ch

al
le

ng
e

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il

w
ill

 th
en

be
 to

en
su

re
 th

at
ho

m
es

 th
at

m
ay

be
co

m
e

no
n-

de
ce

nt
ar

e
ad

dr
es

se
d

be
fo

re
 th

is
ha

pp
en

s.
Th

e
pr

op
os

ed
ta

rg
et

of
0%

no
n-

de
ce

nt
ho

m
es

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

re
fle

ct
s 

th
is

in
te

nt
io

n.

N
I1

59

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

10
0.

00
%

21
2.

40
%

10
0.

00
%

16
4.

77
%

(y
ea

r-
en

d)
10

0.
00

%

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
fo

r 
th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

ha
s

be
en

m
et

an
d

ex
ce

ed
ed

fo
r

20
09

/1
0.

H
ow

ev
er

,i
ti

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1 
sh

ou
ld

no
tb

e
ch

na
ge

d,
as

 th
e

ac
hi

ev
em

en
to

f1
00

.0
0%

'r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

e
fu

lfi
llm

en
to

f t
he

go
ve

rn
m

en
t's

ho
us

in
g 

ta
rg

et
as

si
gn

ed
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e

E
as

to
fE

ng
la

nd
P

la
n.

Th
er

ef
or

e
pr

ef
or

m
an

ce
of

an
yt

hi
ng

ov
er

10
0.

00
%

re
pr

es
en

ts
an

ov
er

-p
ro

vi
si

on
of

ho
us

in
g.

N
I1

60
D

ire
ct

or
of

H
ou

si
ng

85
.0

0%
83

.5
0%

N
/A

N
/A

84
%

Th
is

is
al

re
ad

y
a 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

ta
rg

et
,w

ith
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

w
el

li
nt

o 
th

e 
to

p
qu

ar
til

e.
A

 s
m

al
li

nc
re

as
e

in
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

is
pr

op
os

ed
fo

r
20

10
/1

1.

N
I1

79
D

ire
ct

or
of

 F
in

an
ce

an
d 

IC
T

£6
35

,0
00

.0
0

£1
,2

41
,3

50
.0

0
£3

00
,0

00
.0

0
R

ep
or

te
d

at
ye

ar
-e

nd
£6

00
,0

00
.0

0

Th
e

pr
op

os
ed

 ta
rg

et
fo

r 
th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

is
in

lin
e

w
ith

 th
e

cu
rr

en
t M

ed
iu

m
-T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
S

tr
at

eg
y.

N
I1

81
D

ire
ct

or
of

 F
in

an
ce

an
d 

IC
T

15
.0

0
11

.5
4

15
.0

0
13

.6
7

13
.0

0

It
is

ho
pe

d 
th

at
 th

e
ef

fe
ct

s
of

 th
e

re
st

ru
ct

ur
e

of
 th

e
B

en
ef

its
 D

iv
is

io
n

an
d

a
re

du
ct

io
n

in
 s

ta
ff 

tu
rn

ov
er

,w
ill

al
lo

w
an

im
pr

ov
em

en
ti

n
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

fo
r

20
10

/1
1.

N
I1

82
D

oE
S

S
, D

oH
,

D
oC

S
S

N
ot

 s
et

50
.0

0%
75

.0
0%

R
ep

or
te

d
at

ye
ar

-e
nd

78
.0

0%

Th
e

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

fo
r 

th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n
of

da
ta

fo
r 

th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
ha

s
be

en
ra

di
ca

lly
 c

ha
ng

ed
fro

m
20

09
/1

0,
an

d
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
im

pr
ov

em
en

ti
n

pe
fo

rm
an

ce
is

ex
pe

ct
ed

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

at
 th

e 
ye

ar
en

d.
Th

at
be

in
g 

th
e

ca
se

,a
 s

m
al

li
m

pr
ov

em
en

ti
n 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
is

pr
op

os
ed

fo
r

ne
xt

 y
ea

r.

N
I1

85

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

N
ot

 s
et

N
ot

re
po

rt
ed

N
ot

 s
et

R
ep

or
te

d
at

ye
ar

-e
nd

10
.0

0%

Th
e

pr
op

os
ed

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
m

ee
ts

 th
e

re
qu

ire
m

en
to

f t
he

10
:1

0
in

iti
at

iv
e.

10
:1

0
is

an
am

bi
tio

us
pr

oj
ec

t t
o

un
ite

ev
er

y 
se

ct
or

of
B

rit
is

h
so

ci
et

y
be

hi
nd

on
e 

si
m

pl
e

id
ea

, t
ha

tb
y

w
or

ki
ng

 to
ge

th
er

a
10

%
 c

ut
in

th
e

U
ni

te
d

K
in

gd
om

’s
 c

ar
bo

n
em

is
si

on
s 

ca
n

be
ac

hi
ev

ed
in

20
10

.

N
I1

86

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

N
ot

 s
et

N
ot

re
po

rt
ed

3.
00

%
R

ep
or

te
d

at
ye

ar
-e

nd
8.

00
%

Th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
tf

or
E

ne
rg

y
an

d 
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e
(D

E
C

C
)

ha
s

re
ce

nt
ly

pu
bl

is
he

d
ba

se
lin

e
da

ta
fo

r 
th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

(2
00

5
-

6.
5 

to
nn

es
 C

O
2

pe
r

ca
pi

ta
,2

00
6

-
6.

4 
to

nn
es

 C
O

2
pe

r 
ca

pi
ta

,2
00

7
-

6.
3 

to
nn

es
 C

O
2

pe
r

ca
pi

ta
),

w
hi

ch
in

di
ca

te
s

an
an

nu
al

re
du

ct
io

n
of

a
lit

tle
ov

er
1.

5%
ag

ai
ns

t
th

e
ba

se
lin

e 
ye

ar
.T

he
pr

op
os

ed
re

du
ct

io
n 

ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
is

 th
er

ef
or

e
co

ns
id

er
ed

re
al

is
tic

as
a 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e

po
si

tio
n.

H
ow

ev
er

,g
iv

en
 th

at
 th

er
e

is
a 

tw
o 

ye
ar

la
g

on
 th

e
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n
of

da
ta

fo
r 

th
e

in
di

ca
to

r,
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

w
ill

no
tb

e
pu

bl
is

he
d

by
 D

E
C

C
un

til
20

13
.

S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n
of

bu
si

ne
ss

es
w

ith
lo

ca
la

ut
ho

rit
y

re
gu

la
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
(e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l,

he
al

th
,l

ic
en

si
ng

,p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r
la

nd
lo

rd
s)

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

su
pp

or
ts

 th
e 

su
cc

es
s

of
 th

e
ec

on
om

y 
th

ro
ug

h
a

bu
si

ne
ss

fri
en

dl
y

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t(

H
IG

H
).

C
O

2
re

du
ct

io
n 

fr
om

lo
ca

la
ut

ho
rit

y
op

er
at

io
ns

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r 

su
pp

or
ts

th
e

ac
hi

ev
em

en
to

f t
he

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
ob

je
ct

iv
es

,a
s 

th
e

pu
bl

ic
 s

ec
to

r
is

in
a 

ke
y

po
si

tio
n 

to
le

ad
on

 c
ar

bo
n

em
is

si
on

s
by

 s
et

tin
g

a
be

ha
vi

ou
ra

la
nd

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
ex

am
pl

e.
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
is

m
ea

su
re

d
as

a
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

re
du

ct
io

n
(o

r
in

cr
ea

se
)

fro
m

 th
e

20
08

ba
se

lin
e

(H
IG

H
).

P
er

 c
ap

ita
re

du
ct

io
n

in
 C

O
2

em
is

si
on

s
in

 th
e

lo
ca

la
ut

ho
rit

y
ar

ea
(L

A
A

In
di

ca
to

r)
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r 
su

pp
or

ts
 th

e
ac

hi
ev

em
en

to
f t

he
G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

ob
je

ct
iv

es
,a

s 
th

e
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
r

is
in

a 
ke

y
po

si
tio

n 
to

le
ad

on
 c

ar
bo

n
em

is
si

on
s

by
 s

et
tin

g
a

be
ha

vi
ou

ra
la

nd
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

ex
am

pl
e.

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

is
m

ea
su

re
d

as
a

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
re

du
ct

io
n

(o
r

in
cr

ea
se

)
fro

m
th

e
20

05
ba

se
lin

e
(H

IG
H

).

S
up

pl
y

of
re

ad
y 

to
de

ve
lo

p
ho

us
in

g 
si

te
s.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
e

ab
ili

ty
of

lo
ca

lp
la

nn
in

g
au

th
or

iti
es

 to
m

ai
nt

ai
n

a
fiv

e-
ye

ar
 s

up
pl

y
of

de
liv

er
ab

le
 s

ite
s

fo
r

ho
us

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k,

an
d

is
 th

e 
to

ta
ln

um
be

r
of

ne
ta

dd
iti

on
al

dw
el

lin
gs

 th
at

ar
e

de
liv

er
ab

le
as

a
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

of
 th

e
pl

an
ne

d
ho

us
in

g
pr

ov
is

io
n

(in
ne

ta
dd

iti
on

al
dw

el
lin

gs
)

fo
r 

th
e

fiv
e 

ye
ar

pe
rio

d.
(H

IG
H

).

Lo
ca

la
ut

ho
rit

y 
te

na
nt

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n
w

ith
la

nd
lo

rd
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
en

co
ur

ag
es

 th
e

de
liv

er
y

of
go

od
ho

us
in

g
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s
by

lo
ca

l
au

th
or

iti
es

,w
he

re
 th

ey
re

ta
in

ow
ne

rs
hi

p
of

 c
ou

nc
il

ho
us

in
g

(H
IG

H
).

V
al

ue
 fo

r
M

on
ey

: T
ot

al
ne

t v
al

ue
of

on
-g

oi
ng

 c
as

h-
re

le
as

in
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r
m

on
ey

ga
in

s 
th

at
ha

ve
im

pa
ct

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

st
ar

to
f t

he
20

08
/0

9 
fin

an
ci

al
ye

ar
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
e 

to
ta

ln
et

va
lu

e
of

on
-g

oi
ng

 c
as

h-
re

le
as

in
g

va
lu

e
fo

r
m

on
ey

ga
in

s 
th

at
ha

ve
im

pa
ct

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

st
ar

to
f t

he
20

08
/0

9
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r

(H
IG

H
).

T
im

e 
ta

ke
n

(d
ay

s)
 to

pr
oc

es
s 

H
ou

si
ng

B
en

ef
it/

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

B
en

ef
it

ne
w

cl
ai

m
s

an
d 

ch
an

ge
ev

en
ts

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

m
ea

su
re

s
be

ne
fit

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
,

as
de

la
ys

in
 th

e
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
of

be
ne

fit
s 

ca
n

im
pa

ct
on

 s
om

e
of

 th
e

m
os

tv
ul

ne
ra

bl
e

pe
op

le
(L

O
W

).

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

of
pl

an
ni

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
as

m
ea

su
re

d
ag

ai
ns

t t
ar

ge
ts

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

en
su

re
s 

th
at

lo
ca

lp
la

nn
in

g
au

th
or

iti
es

de
te

rm
in

e
'o

th
er

'p
la

nn
in

g
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
in

a 
tim

el
y

m
an

ne
r

(w
ith

in
ei

gh
tw

ee
ks

)
(H

IG
H

).

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

of
no

n-
de

ce
nt

 c
ou

nc
il

ho
m

es
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
no

n-
de

ce
nt

 c
ou

nc
il

ho
m

es
an

d 
th

e
pr

op
or

tio
n 

th
is

re
pr

es
en

ts
of

th
e 

to
ta

l c
ou

nc
il

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k,
in

or
de

r 
to

de
m

on
st

ra
te

pr
og

re
ss

 to
w

ar
ds

m
ak

in
g

al
l c

ou
nc

il
ho

us
in

g
de

ce
nt

(L
O

W
).

Page 24



R
ef

:
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

T
ar

g
et

20
08

/0
9

O
u

tt
u

rn
20

08
/0

9
T

ar
g

et
20

09
/1

0

Q
u

ar
te

r
3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

20
10

/1
1

C
o

m
m

en
ts

/J
u

st
if

ic
at

io
n

fo
r

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

an
d

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

(H
IG

H
/L

O
W

)

N
I1

87

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

N
ot

 s
et

12
.0

0%
11

.5
0%

R
ep

or
te

d
at

ye
ar

-e
nd

To
be

 s
et

at
ye

ar
-e

nd

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

ag
ai

ns
t t

hi
s

in
di

ca
to

r
w

ill
no

tb
e

av
ai

la
bl

e
un

til
 th

e 
ye

ar
-e

nd
.

A
t t

hi
s 

st
ag

e,
it

is
no

t t
he

re
fo

re
po

ss
ib

le
 to

id
en

tif
y

a
pr

op
os

ed
 ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1.

N
I1

88

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Le
ve

l 1
Le

ve
l 1

Le
ve

l 2
R

ep
or

te
d

at
ye

ar
-e

nd
Le

ve
l 2

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e

pr
op

os
ed

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1 
co

nt
ra

di
ct

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e

S
tr

at
eg

y,
it

is
pr

op
se

d 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 th
e

Le
ve

l2
 ta

rg
et

fo
r

th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

10
/1

1,
as

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il

is
un

lik
el

y 
to

m
ee

t t
he

 c
rit

er
ia

fo
r 

th
e

ac
hi

ev
em

en
to

fL
ev

el
3

in
 th

is
pe

rio
d.

N
I1

89

D
ire

ct
or

of
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
nd

S
tr

ee
tS

ce
ne

(a
s

le
ad

of
fic

er
)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

80
.0

0%

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
is

an
E

nv
iro

nm
en

tA
ge

nc
y

re
tu

rn
,r

eq
ui

rin
g

in
pu

tf
ro

m
 th

re
e

se
rv

ic
e

di
re

ct
or

at
es

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
Th

e
ad

di
tio

n
of

 th
is

N
I t

o 
th

e
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

in
di

ca
to

r 
sc

he
du

le
w

ill
al

lo
w

be
tte

r
re

po
rt

in
g 

to
 th

e
E

nv
iro

nm
en

tA
ge

nc
y,

an
d

w
ill

ho
pe

fu
lly

al
lo

w
 M

em
be

rs
 to

ha
ve

a
be

tte
r

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g
of

 s
om

e
of

 th
e

is
su

es
re

la
tin

g 
to

flo
od

ris
k

m
an

ag
em

en
t,

ac
ro

ss
 th

e
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
nd

S
tr

ee
tS

ce
ne

(L
an

d 
D

ra
in

ag
e)

, D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t(

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tr
ol

),
an

d
C

or
po

ra
te

S
up

po
rt

S
er

vi
ce

s
(E

m
er

ge
nc

y
P

la
nn

in
g)

fu
nc

tio
ns

.
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

in
di

ca
to

r
w

ill
be

re
po

rt
ed

at
 y

ea
r-

en
d

on
ly

,b
ut

th
e

pr
op

os
ed

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
m

ay
ne

ed
 to

be
re

vi
ew

ed
on

ce
re

le
va

nt
ris

k
m

an
ag

em
en

tp
la

ns
ha

ve
be

en
ag

re
ed

by
 th

e
E

nv
iro

nm
en

tA
ge

nc
y.

N
I1

91
D

ire
ct

or
of

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

nd
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne
55

4.
00

53
9.

00
54

8.
00

34
8.

00
50

0.
00

Th
e

Lo
ca

lA
re

a
A

gr
ee

m
en

t t
ar

ge
tf

or
 th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

is
55

4k
g.

H
ow

ev
er

,
th

e
ne

w
w

as
te

m
an

ag
em

en
ta

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

im
pl

em
en

te
d

in
S

ep
te

m
be

r
20

09
ar

e
de

liv
er

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
re

du
ct

io
ns

in
re

si
du

al
w

as
te

an
d

if 
th

e
th

ird
qu

ar
te

r
po

si
tio

n
of

34
8k

g
is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d

on
a

pr
o-

ra
ta

ba
si

s
fo

r 
th

e
fu

ll
ye

ar
, t

he
pr

ed
ic

te
d

ou
ttu

rn
is

46
4k

g.
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 th

ird
qu

ar
te

r
po

si
tio

n
is

un
au

di
te

d,
an

d
m

ay
no

tr
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

to
ta

lit
y

of
ad

di
tio

na
l C

hr
is

tm
as

/N
ew

Y
ea

r
w

as
te

.
Th

er
ef

or
e,

 th
e

20
09

/1
0

ou
ttu

rn
is

lik
el

y 
to

be
ne

ar
er

 to
50

0k
g

pe
r

ho
us

eh
ol

d.
  F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

 th
e 

C
ab

in
et

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e
co

lle
ct

io
n

of
ho

us
eh

ol
d

w
as

te
fro

m
vi

lla
ge

ha
lls

,p
la

ce
s

of
re

lig
io

us
w

or
sh

ip
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

s
et

c
in

 M
ar

ch
20

10
an

d,
de

pe
nd

in
g

on
le

ve
ls

of
se

rv
ic

e 
ta

ke
-u

p,
 th

is
w

ill
re

su
lt

in
an

in
cr

ea
se

in
 th

e
w

as
te

 s
tr

ea
m

ov
er

al
l

an
d

al
so

re
si

du
al

w
as

te
.A

 ta
rg

et
of

50
0k

g
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
pr

op
os

ed
fo

r
20

10
/1

1,
 to

be
re

vi
ew

ed
on

ce
 th

e
ou

ttu
rn

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

is
 c

le
ar

.

N
I1

92
D

ire
ct

or
of

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

nd
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne
40

.0
0%

43
.4

4%
42

.0
0%

50
.9

0%
58

.0
0%

Th
e

Lo
ca

lA
re

a
A

gr
ee

m
en

t t
ar

ge
tf

or
 th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

is
42

%
.

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

ne
w

w
as

te
m

an
ag

em
en

ta
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
im

pl
em

en
te

d
in

S
ep

te
m

be
r

20
09

ar
e

de
liv

er
in

g 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

in
re

cy
cl

in
g

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
,

ap
pr

oa
ch

in
g

60
%

in
 s

om
e

ar
ea

s.
Th

e
pr

op
os

ed
 ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

re
fle

ct
s 

th
is

 c
ur

re
nt

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
,b

ut
al

so
al

lo
w

s
fo

r
lo

w
er

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
in

 s
om

e
ar

ea
s,

w
hi

ch
w

ill
ex

is
tu

nt
il

al
lf

la
ts

an
d 

co
m

m
un

al
bu

ild
in

gs
ha

ve
be

en
pr

ov
id

ed
w

ith
fo

rm
al

re
cy

cl
in

g
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
m

ay
re

qu
ire

re
vi

ew
on

ce
 th

e
au

di
te

d
ou

ttu
rn

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

is
 k

no
w

n.

P
la

nn
in

g 
to

ad
ap

t t
o 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
(L

A
A

In
di

ca
to

r)
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
en

su
re

s 
th

at
lo

ca
la

ut
ho

rit
ie

s
ar

e
pr

ep
ar

ed
 to

m
an

ag
e

ris
ks

 to
 s

er
vi

ce
de

liv
er

y,
 th

e
pu

bl
ic

,l
oc

al
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
,l

oc
al

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
bu

si
ne

ss
es

an
d 

th
e

na
tu

ra
le

nv
iro

nm
en

t,
fro

m
a 

ch
an

gi
ng

 c
lim

at
e

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

ag
ai

ns
t t

hi
s

in
di

ca
to

r
is

re
po

rt
ed

on
 th

e
ba

si
s

of
fo

ur
le

ve
ls

(L
ev

el
1

-
P

ub
lic

 c
om

m
itt

m
en

ta
nd

ris
k-

ba
se

d
as

se
ss

m
en

t,
Le

ve
l2

- 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

ris
k-

ba
se

d
as

se
ss

m
en

ta
nd

pr
io

rit
is

ed
ac

tio
n

in
 s

om
e

ar
ea

s,
Le

ve
l3

-
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

ac
tio

n
pl

an
an

d
pr

io
rit

is
ed

ac
tio

n
in

al
la

re
as

,L
ev

el
4

-
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

m
on

ito
rin

g
an

d 
co

nt
in

uo
us

re
vi

ew
)

(H
IG

H
).

R
es

id
ua

lh
ou

se
ho

ld
w

as
te

pe
r

ho
us

eh
ol

d
(c

um
ul

at
iv

e
K

g)
(L

A
A

In
di

ca
to

r)
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r 
su

pp
or

ts
G

ov
er

nm
en

tw
is

he
s 

to
ac

hi
ev

e 
ye

ar
on

ye
ar

re
du

ct
io

ns
in

 th
e

am
ou

nt
of

re
si

du
al

w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

, t
hr

ou
gh

a
co

m
bi

na
tio

n
of

le
ss

ov
er

al
lw

as
te

an
d

m
or

e
re

us
e,

re
cy

cl
in

g
an

d
co

m
po

st
in

g
(L

O
W

).

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

of
ho

us
eh

ol
d

w
as

te
 s

en
t f

or
re

us
e,

re
cy

cl
in

g
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g
(L

A
A

In
di

ca
to

r)
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r 
su

pp
or

ts
 y

ea
r

on
 y

ea
r

re
du

ct
io

ns
in

 th
e

am
ou

nt
of

re
si

du
al

w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

,a
nd

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

of
ho

us
eh

ol
d

w
as

te
ar

is
in

gs
 s

en
tf

or
re

us
e,

re
cy

cl
in

g,
 c

om
po

st
in

g
or

an
ae

ro
bi

c
di

ge
st

io
n

(H
IG

H
).

F
lo

od
an

d 
co

as
ta

le
ro

si
on

ris
k

m
an

ag
em

en
t.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
re

co
rd

s 
th

e
pr

og
re

ss
of

lo
ca

la
ut

ho
rit

ie
s

in
de

liv
er

in
g

ag
re

ed
ac

tio
ns

 to
im

pl
em

en
t

lo
ng

-t
er

m
flo

od
an

d 
co

as
ta

le
ro

si
on

ris
k

m
an

ag
em

en
tp

la
ns

,a
nd

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
is

ex
pr

es
se

d
as

 th
e

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

ris
k

m
an

ag
em

en
tp

la
ns

ag
re

ed
w

ith
 th

e
E

nv
iro

nm
en

tA
ge

nc
y,

 th
at

ar
e

be
in

g
un

de
rt

ak
en

sa
tis

fc
at

or
ily

(H
IG

H
).

T
ac

kl
in

g 
fu

el
po

ve
rt

y:
P

eo
pl

e
re

ce
iv

in
g

in
co

m
e

ba
se

d
be

ne
fit

s
liv

in
g

in
ho

m
es

w
ith

a
lo

w
en

er
gy

ef
fic

ie
nc

y
ra

tin
g.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
as

se
ss

es
le

ve
ls

of
fu

el
po

ve
rt

y 
th

ro
ug

h
an

an
nu

al
 s

ur
ve

y
of

pe
op

le
re

ce
iv

in
g

in
co

m
e

ba
se

d
be

ne
fit

s
liv

in
g

in
ho

m
es

w
ith

lo
w

en
er

gy
ef

fic
ie

nc
y

ra
tin

gs
(L

O
W

).

Page 25



R
ef

:
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

T
ar

g
et

20
08

/0
9

O
u

tt
u

rn
20

08
/0

9
T

ar
g

et
20

09
/1

0

Q
u

ar
te

r
3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

20
10

/1
1

C
o

m
m

en
ts

/J
u

st
if

ic
at

io
n

fo
r

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

an
d

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

(H
IG

H
/L

O
W

)

N
I1

94

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

N
ot

 s
et

N
ot

re
po

rt
ed

N
ot

 s
et

R
ep

or
te

d
at

ye
ar

-e
nd

To
be

 s
et

at
ye

ar
-e

nd

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

ag
ai

ns
t t

hi
s

in
di

ca
to

r
w

ill
no

tb
e

av
ai

la
bl

e
un

til
 th

e 
ye

ar
-e

nd
.

A
t t

hi
s 

st
ag

e,
it

is
no

t t
he

re
fo

re
po

ss
ib

le
 to

id
en

tif
y

a
pr

op
os

ed
 ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1.

N
I1

95
(a

)
D

ire
ct

or
of

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

nd
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne
10

.5
0%

11
.6

7%
10

.0
0%

11
.0

0%
10

.0
0%

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

ag
ai

ns
t t

hi
s

in
di

ca
to

r
is

no
w

 c
on

si
st

en
tly

in
 th

e
re

gi
on

of
10

%
 to

11
%

.
W

hi
ls

t t
he

pr
op

os
ed

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
re

m
ai

ns
 th

e 
sa

m
e

as
fo

r
20

09
/1

0,
it

is
m

or
e

re
so

ur
ce

in
te

ns
iv

e 
to

ge
ne

ra
te

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

in
st

an
da

rd
s

fro
m

10
%

on
w

ar
ds

.
N

ow
 th

at
 th

e
ne

w
re

cy
cl

in
g 

sy
st

em
is

fu
lly

in
pl

ac
e,

it 
sh

ou
ld

be
po

ss
ib

le
 to

de
vo

te
ad

di
tio

na
lm

on
ito

rin
g 

to
 th

e
st

re
et

 c
le

an
si

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

en
su

re
 c

on
tin

ue
d

im
pr

ov
em

en
t.

N
I1

95
(b

)
D

ire
ct

or
of

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

nd
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne
15

.0
0%

14
.0

0%
13

.0
0%

14
.0

0%
13

.0
0%

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

ag
ai

ns
t t

hi
s

in
di

ca
to

r
is

no
w

 c
on

si
st

en
tly

w
ith

in
 th

e
13

%
 to

14
%

ra
ng

e.
Th

e
re

te
nt

io
n

of
 th

e 
cu

re
nt

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
ap

pe
ar

s
re

fle
ct

s 
th

e
na

tu
re

of
 th

e
di

st
ric

t's
hi

gh
w

ay
ne

tw
or

k,
w

ith
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t
le

ng
th

s
of

ro
ad

w
ith

ou
t k

er
b

ed
ge

s
et

c.
  F

ur
th

er
m

or
e,

re
ce

nt
da

m
ag

e 
to

th
e

hi
gh

w
ay

in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ca

us
ed

by
 th

e 
se

ve
r

w
in

te
r

w
ea

th
er

w
ill

al
so

im
pa

ct
ad

ve
rs

le
y

on
 th

e
le

ve
ls

of
de

tr
itu

s.
S

ig
ni

fic
an

ti
m

pr
ov

em
en

to
ve

r
pr

es
en

tl
ev

el
s

w
ou

ld
re

qu
ire

ad
di

tio
na

lr
es

ou
rc

es
 to

be
ap

pl
ie

d
w

hi
ch

,i
f

av
ai

la
bl

e,
w

ou
ld

be
m

or
e

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
if

di
re

ct
ed

at
lit

te
r

(N
I1

95
(a

))
.

N
I1

95
(c

)
D

ire
ct

or
of

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

nd
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne
5.

00
%

0.
33

%
0.

25
%

0.
00

%
0.

25
%

Le
ve

ls
of

gr
af

fit
iw

ith
in

 th
e

di
st

ric
tr

em
ai

n
ve

ry
lo

w
.

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

th
ird

qu
ar

te
r

po
si

tio
n

fo
r 

th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
w

as
0%

(ie
.n

o
gr

af
fit

i
de

te
ct

ed
du

rin
g

fo
rm

al
as

se
ss

m
en

t)
, t

he
pr

op
os

ed
 ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

w
ill

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

cl
os

e
at

te
nt

io
n 

to
de

al
in

g
w

ith
in

ci
de

nc
es

of
gr

af
fit

i
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y.

N
I1

95
(d

)
D

ire
ct

or
of

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

nd
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne
5.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

Le
ve

ls
of

fly
-p

os
tin

g
w

ith
in

 th
e

di
st

ric
tr

em
ai

n
ve

ry
lo

w
.A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
th

ird
qu

ar
te

r
po

si
tio

n
fo

r 
th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

w
as

0%
(ie

.n
o

fly
-p

os
tin

g
de

te
ct

ed
du

rin
g

fo
rm

al
as

se
ss

m
en

t)
, t

he
pr

op
os

ed
 ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

w
ill

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

cl
os

e
at

te
nt

io
n 

to
de

al
in

g
w

ith
in

ci
de

nc
es

of
fly

-
po

st
in

g
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y

N
I1

96
D

ire
ct

or
of

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

nd
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne
G

ra
de

 2
G

ra
de

 2
G

ra
de

 2
G

ra
de

 2
G

ra
de

 2

Th
e

ac
hi

ev
em

en
to

fG
ra

de
1

fo
r 

th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
is

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g,

re
qu

iri
ng

bo
th

an
in

cr
ea

se
in

en
fo

rc
em

en
ta

ct
iv

ity
an

d
a

de
cr

ea
se

in
fly

-t
ip

pi
ng

ov
er

al
l.

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

lE
nf

or
ce

m
en

tT
ea

m
is

no
w

fu
lly

in
pl

ac
e

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
be

ab
le

 to
ap

pl
y 

th
e

re
so

ur
ce

s
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
de

liv
er

an
in

cr
ea

se
in

en
fo

rc
em

en
ta

ct
iv

ity
an

d
a

de
cr

ea
se

in
fly

-t
ip

pi
ng

,i
ti

s
co

ns
id

er
ed

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

re
ta

in
 th

e
G

ra
de

2 
ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1.

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
ta

nd
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s
(F

ly
-T

ip
pi

ng
).

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r 
se

ek
s 

to
ac

hi
ev

e
re

du
ct

io
ns

in
 th

e 
to

ta
ln

um
be

r
of

in
ci

de
nt

s
an

d
an

in
cr

ea
se

in
en

fo
rc

em
en

ta
ct

io
n 

ta
ke

n 
to

de
al

w
ith

 th
e

ill
eg

al
di

sp
os

al
of

w
as

te
.P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
ag

ai
ns

t t
hi

s
in

di
ca

to
r

is
re

po
rt

ed
on

 th
e

ba
si

s
of

fo
ur

gr
ad

es
(G

ra
de

1
-

V
er

y
E

ffe
ct

iv
e,

G
ra

de
2

-
E

ffe
ct

iv
e,

G
ra

de
3

-
N

ot
E

ffe
ct

iv
e,

G
ra

de
4

-
P

oo
r)

(L
O

W
).

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
ta

nd
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s
(L

itt
er

).
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

se
ek

s 
to

re
du

ce
un

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
le

ve
ls

of
lit

te
r.

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

is
re

po
rt

ed
as

th
e

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

re
la

va
nt

la
nd

an
d

hi
gh

w
ay

s
as

se
ss

ed
as

ha
vi

ng
de

po
si

ts
of

lit
te

r 
th

at
fa

ll
be

lo
w

an
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

le
ve

l(
LO

W
).

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
ta

nd
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s
(D

et
rit

us
).

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
se

ek
s 

to
re

du
ce

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

le
ve

ls
of

de
tr

itu
s.

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

is
re

po
rt

ed
as

 th
e

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

re
la

va
nt

la
nd

an
d

hi
gh

w
ay

s
as

se
ss

ed
as

ha
vi

ng
de

po
si

ts
of

de
rit

us
 th

at
fa

ll
be

lo
w

an
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

le
ve

l(
LO

W
).

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
ta

nd
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s
(G

ra
ffi

ti)
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
se

ek
s 

to
re

du
ce

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

le
ve

ls
of

gr
af

fit
i.

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

is
re

po
rt

ed
as

 th
e

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

re
la

va
nt

la
nd

an
d

hi
gh

w
ay

s
as

se
ss

ed
as

ha
vi

ng
de

po
si

ts
of

gr
af

fit
i t

ha
tf

al
lb

el
ow

an
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

le
ve

l(
LO

W
).

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
ta

nd
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s
(F

ly
-P

os
tin

g)
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r 
se

ek
s 

to
re

du
ce

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

le
ve

ls
of

fly
-p

os
tin

g.
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
is

re
po

rt
ed

as
 th

e
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

of
re

la
va

nt
la

nd
an

d
hi

gh
w

ay
s

as
se

ss
ed

as
ha

vi
ng

le
ve

ls
of

fly
-p

os
tin

g 
th

at
fa

ll
be

lo
w

an
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

le
ve

l(
LO

W
).

A
ir

qu
al

ity
:P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
re

du
ct

io
n

in
 N

O
x

an
d

pr
im

ar
y

P
M

10
em

is
si

on
s

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e

lo
ca

la
ut

ho
rit

y’
s

es
ta

te
an

d
op

er
at

io
ns

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

re
du

ct
io

n
in

N
O

x
an

d
pr

im
ar

y
P

M
10

em
is

si
on

s
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s

es
ta

te
an

d
op

er
at

io
ns

, t
o

id
en

tif
y

lo
ca

la
ut

ho
rit

ie
s

th
at

ar
e

pr
oa

ct
iv

e
in

m
in

im
is

in
g

ai
r

po
llu

tio
n

em
is

si
on

s
(H

IG
H

).

Page 26



R
ef

:
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

T
ar

g
et

20
08

/0
9

O
u

tt
u

rn
20

08
/0

9
T

ar
g

et
20

09
/1

0

Q
u

ar
te

r
3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

20
10

/1
1

C
o

m
m

en
ts

/J
u

st
if

ic
at

io
n

fo
r

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

an
d

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

(H
IG

H
/L

O
W

)

R
ef

:
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

T
ar

g
et

20
08

/0
9

O
u

tt
u

rn
20

08
/0

9
T

ar
g

et
20

09
/1

0

Q
u

ar
te

r
3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

20
10

/1
1

C
o

m
m

en
ts

/J
u

st
if

ic
at

io
n

fo
r

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

LP
I0

1
D

ep
ut

y 
C

hi
ef

E
xe

cu
tiv

e
Le

ve
l2

(o
f

E
S

LG
)

Le
ve

l2
(o

f
E

S
LG

)
Le

ve
l2

(o
f

E
F

LG
)

R
ep

or
te

d
at

ye
ar

-e
nd

Le
ve

l2
(o

f
E

F
LG

)

Th
e

E
qu

al
ity

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k

fo
r

Lo
ca

lG
ov

er
nm

en
t(

E
F

LG
)

w
as

in
tr

od
uc

ed
fro

m
1

A
pr

il
20

09
,r

ep
la

ci
ng

 th
e

pr
ev

io
us

E
qu

al
ity

S
ta

nd
ar

d
fo

r
Lo

ca
l

G
ov

er
nm

en
t(

E
S

LG
),

an
d

pr
ov

id
es

an
im

pr
ov

ed
fra

m
ew

or
k

fo
r

de
liv

er
in

g
co

nt
in

uo
us

im
pr

ov
em

en
ti

n
re

la
tio

n 
to

fa
ir

em
pl

oy
m

en
to

ut
co

m
es

an
d

eq
ua

la
cc

es
s 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

Th
e

fo
rm

er
E

S
LG

as
se

ss
ed

lo
ca

la
ut

ho
rit

y
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

at
fiv

e
le

ve
ls

,w
he

re
Le

ve
l5

re
pr

es
en

te
d

be
st

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
.

Th
e

ne
w

E
F

LG
us

es
a

w
id

er
de

fin
iti

on
of

eq
ua

lit
y,

ba
se

d
on

 th
e

id
ea

of
eq

ua
ll

ife
 c

ha
nc

es
,a

nd
as

se
ss

es
lo

ca
la

ut
ho

rit
y

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
at

 th
re

e
le

ve
ls

,w
he

re
Le

ve
l3

re
pr

es
en

ts
be

st
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

.T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
pr

ev
io

us
E

S
LG

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
es

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e

ac
hi

ev
em

en
to

f s
pe

ci
fic

le
ve

ls
of

 th
e

ne
w

E
F

LG
,a

nd
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

pl
ac

es
 th

e
au

th
or

ity
at

Le
ve

l1
,w

hi
ch

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 th

e
Le

ve
l2

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

09
/1

0.
A

'p
ee

r 
ch

al
le

ng
e'

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s

eq
ua

lit
y

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
is

 to
be

un
de

rt
ak

en
in

ea
rly

20
10

,a
nd

it
is

 c
on

si
de

re
d

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

re
ta

in
 th

e
Le

ve
l2

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1,
pe

nd
in

g 
th

e
ou

tc
om

e
of

 th
is

ex
er

ci
se

.

LP
I0

2(
a)

D
ire

ct
or

of
C

or
po

ra
te

S
up

po
rt

S
er

vi
ce

s

N
ew

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
N

ew
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

10
0.

00
%

10
0.

00
%

10
0.

00
%

C
ur

re
nt

w
or

kl
oa

ds
w

ith
in

 th
e

Li
ce

ns
in

g
S

ec
tio

n
ha

ve
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

to
in

cr
ea

se
,b

ot
h

in
 te

rm
s

of
vo

lu
m

e
an

d 
co

m
pl

ex
ity

.T
he

ab
ili

ty
of

 th
e

S
ec

tio
n 

to
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ta
rg

et
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

w
ill

 th
er

ef
or

e
be

su
ffi

ci
en

tly
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g,
w

hi
ls

tr
em

ai
ni

ng
re

al
is

tic
.

LP
I0

2(
b)

D
ire

ct
or

of
C

or
po

ra
te

S
up

po
rt

S
er

vi
ce

s

N
ew

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
N

ew
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

10
0.

00
%

10
0.

00
%

10
0.

00
%

C
ur

re
nt

w
or

kl
oa

ds
w

ith
in

 th
e

Li
ce

ns
in

g
S

ec
tio

n
ha

ve
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

to
in

cr
ea

se
,b

ot
h

in
 te

rm
s

of
vo

lu
m

e
an

d 
co

m
pl

ex
ity

.T
he

ab
ili

ty
of

 th
e

S
ec

tio
n 

to
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ta
rg

et
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

w
ill

 th
er

ef
or

e
be

su
ffi

ci
en

tly
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g,
w

hi
ls

tr
em

ai
ni

ng
re

al
is

tic
.

LP
I0

2(
c)

D
ire

ct
or

of
C

or
po

ra
te

S
up

po
rt

S
er

vi
ce

s

N
ew

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
N

ew
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

10
0.

00
%

10
0.

00
%

10
0.

00
%

C
ur

re
nt

w
or

kl
oa

ds
w

ith
in

 th
e

Li
ce

ns
in

g
S

ec
tio

n
ha

ve
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

to
in

cr
ea

se
,b

ot
h

in
 te

rm
s

of
vo

lu
m

e
an

d 
co

m
pl

ex
ity

.T
he

ab
ili

ty
of

 th
e

S
ec

tio
n 

to
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ta
rg

et
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

w
ill

 th
er

ef
or

e
be

su
ffi

ci
en

tly
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g,
w

hi
ls

tr
em

ai
ni

ng
re

al
is

tic
.

LP
I0

4
D

ire
ct

or
of

H
ou

si
ng

98
.8

1%
99

.2
4%

98
.8

0%
97

.2
%

97
.0

0%

F
ol

lo
w

in
g

a 
ch

an
ge

in
 th

e
la

w
re

la
tin

g 
to

'to
le

ra
te

d 
tr

es
pa

ss
er

s'
,r

es
ul

tin
g

in
 te

na
nt

s
w

ith
 c

ou
rt

or
de

rs
no

w
ha

vi
ng

 to
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d

as
 c

ur
re

nt
te

na
nt

s
(w

he
re

as
in

 th
e

pa
st

 th
ey

 c
ou

ld
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d

as
fo

rm
er

te
na

nt
s)

, t
he

re
nt

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n

fig
ur

e
w

ill
no

tb
e

as
hi

gh
as

in
pr

ev
io

us
ye

ar
s.

Th
e

pr
op

os
ed

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
ha

s
be

en
 s

et
by

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
e

Q
ua

rt
er

3
po

si
tio

n
fo

r
20

09
/1

0.

LP
I0

5
D

ire
ct

or
of

H
ou

si
ng

49
.0

0
50

.0
0

40
.0

0
30

.0
0

30
.0

0

C
ur

re
nt

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
is

on
 ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
09

/1
0.

Th
e

pr
op

os
ed

im
pr

ov
em

en
ti

n 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

is
ba

se
d

on
 th

e
ou

t-
tu

rn
fig

ur
e

fo
r

Q
ua

rt
er

3
of

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r.

LP
I0

7
D

ire
ct

or
of

H
ou

si
ng

99
.0

0%
99

.0
0%

99
.0

0%
98

.0
7%

99
.0

0%

It
is

pr
op

os
ed

 to
re

ta
in

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t t

ar
ge

tf
or

 th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

10
/1

1.

L
O

C
A

L
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 IN
D

IC
A

T
O

R
S

T
he

le
ve

lo
f t

he
E

qu
al

ity
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r
Lo

ca
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t.
Th

e
E

qu
al

ity
F

ra
m

ew
or

k
pr

ov
id

es
a

fra
m

ew
or

k
fo

r
de

liv
er

in
g 

co
nt

in
uo

us
im

pr
ov

em
en

t
in

re
la

tio
n 

to
fa

ir
em

pl
oy

m
en

to
ut

co
m

es
an

d
eq

ua
la

cc
es

s 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

s
(H

IG
H

).

T
he

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

P
re

m
is

es
Li

ce
nc

e
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
de

te
rm

in
ed

w
ith

in
 th

irt
y

da
ys

. T
hi

s
in

di
ca

to
r

m
on

ito
rs

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s

in
 th

e
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n

of
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

lic
en

ce
s.

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

an
d

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

(H
IG

H
/L

O
W

)

E
m

er
ge

nc
y

re
pa

irs
un

de
rt

ak
en

w
ith

in
 ta

rg
et

 ti
m

e
(w

ith
in

24
ho

ur
s)

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

is
a

m
ea

su
re

of
ho

us
in

g
m

an
ag

em
en

tp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

,a
s

it
is

in
cu

m
be

nt
up

on
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
as

la
nd

lo
rd

 to
en

su
re

 th
e

up
ke

ep
of

its
dw

el
lin

gs
an

d 
th

at
re

pa
irs

ar
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
on

 ti
m

e
(H

IG
H

).

T
he

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

 T
em

po
ra

ry
E

ve
nt

Li
ce

nc
e

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

de
te

rm
in

ed
w

ith
in

 fi
ve

da
ys

. T
hi

s
in

di
ca

to
r

m
on

ito
rs

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s

in
 th

e
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n

of
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

lic
en

ce
s.

T
he

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

 H
ac

kn
ey

 C
ar

ria
ge

/P
riv

at
e 

H
ire

lic
en

ce
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
de

te
rm

in
ed

w
ith

in
 fi

ve
da

ys
. T

hi
s

in
di

ca
to

r
m

on
ito

rs
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s
in

 th
e

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n
of

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
lic

en
ce

s.

R
en

t c
ol

le
ct

ed
as

a
pr

op
or

tio
n

of
re

nt
s

ow
ed

on
ho

us
in

g
re

ve
nu

e
ac

co
un

t
dw

el
lin

gs
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
is

a
m

ea
su

re
of

a
lo

ca
la

ut
ho

rit
y'

s
re

nt
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n
an

d
ar

re
ar

s
re

co
ve

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
(H

IG
H

).

A
ve

ra
ge

nu
m

be
r

of
da

ys
 to

re
-le

t C
ou

nc
il

dw
el

lin
gs

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s

ho
us

in
g

m
an

ag
em

en
tp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
,a

s
it

is
im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
tp

ro
pe

rt
y

re
-le

t t
im

es
ar

e 
ke

pt
 to

a
m

in
im

um
in

vi
ew

of
cu

rr
en

tp
re

ss
ur

es
on

 s
oc

ia
lh

ou
si

ng
(L

O
W

).

Page 27



R
ef

:
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

T
ar

g
et

20
08

/0
9

O
u

tt
u

rn
20

08
/0

9
T

ar
g

et
20

09
/1

0

Q
u

ar
te

r
3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

20
10

/1
1

C
o

m
m

en
ts

/J
u

st
if

ic
at

io
n

fo
r

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

an
d

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

(H
IG

H
/L

O
W

)

LP
I0

8
D

ire
ct

or
of

H
ou

si
ng

95
.0

0%
86

.0
0%

95
.0

0%
93

.6
6%

95
.0

0%

P
ro

po
se

d
re

te
nt

io
n

of
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t t
ar

ge
t. 

It 
is

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

be
re

vi
ew

ed
fo

r
20

11
/1

2,
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e

ap
po

in
tm

en
to

fa
pr

iv
at

e 
R

ep
ai

rs
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
on

tr
ac

to
r.

LP
I0

9
D

ire
ct

or
of

H
ou

si
ng

95
.0

0%
86

.0
0%

90
.0

0%
96

.7
0%

95
.0

0%

P
ro

po
se

d
im

pr
ov

em
en

ti
n 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
, t

o
re

co
gn

is
e 

th
e

im
pr

ov
em

en
ti

n
re

po
ns

e 
tim

es
du

rin
g

20
09

/1
0

LP
I1

0
D

ire
ct

or
of

H
ou

si
ng

98
.0

0%
98

.0
0%

98
.0

0%
98

.5
3%

98
.0

0%

It
is

pr
op

os
ed

 to
re

ta
in

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t t

ar
ge

tf
or

 th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

10
/1

1.

LP
I1

3
D

ire
ct

or
of

 F
in

an
ce

an
d 

IC
T

97
.0

0%
97

.1
7%

97
.0

0%
98

.0
0%

98
.0

0%

Th
e

pr
op

os
ed

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
fo

r 
th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
to

be
 th

e
hi

gh
es

t s
us

ta
in

ab
le

,w
ith

ou
t c

om
pr

om
is

in
g 

th
e

ac
cu

ra
cy

of
pa

ym
en

ts
an

d 
th

e
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s

of
 c

he
ck

in
g

pr
oc

es
se

s.

LP
I1

4
D

ire
ct

or
of

 F
in

an
ce

an
d 

IC
T

98
.5

0%
97

.6
0%

98
.0

0%
77

.7
2%

97
.8

0%

A
 s

lig
ht

ly
lo

w
er

 ta
rg

et
is

pr
op

os
ed

fo
r 

th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

10
/1

1,
gi

ve
n 

th
e

on
go

in
g

ec
on

om
ic

 s
itu

at
io

n
an

d 
th

e
in

cr
ea

si
ng

nu
m

be
r

of
re

si
de

nt
s

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g

fin
an

ci
al

di
ffi

cu
lti

es
.

LP
I1

5
D

ire
ct

or
of

 F
in

an
ce

an
d 

IC
T

99
.3

0%
97

.5
8%

98
.2

0%
81

.5
0%

98
.0

0%

A
 s

lig
ht

ly
lo

w
er

 ta
rg

et
is

pr
op

os
ed

fo
r 

th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

10
/1

1,
gi

ve
n 

th
e

on
go

in
g

ec
on

om
ic

 s
itu

at
io

n
an

d 
th

e
in

cr
ea

si
ng

nu
m

be
r

of
re

si
de

nt
s

ex
pe

rie
nc

in
g

fin
an

ci
al

di
ffi

cu
lti

es
.

LP
I1

6
D

ire
ct

or
of

 F
in

an
ce

an
d 

IC
T

30
.0

0
47

.1
2

25
.0

0
34

.8
1

25
.0

0

It
is

ho
pe

d 
th

at
 th

e
ef

fe
ct

s
of

 th
e

re
st

ru
ct

ur
e

of
 th

e
B

en
ef

its
 D

iv
is

io
n

an
d

a
re

du
ct

io
n

in
 s

ta
ff 

tu
rn

ov
er

,w
ill

al
lo

w
an

im
pr

ov
em

en
ti

n
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

fo
r

20
10

/1
1.

LP
I1

7
D

ire
ct

or
of

 F
in

an
ce

an
d 

IC
T

11
.0

0
6.

05
10

.0
0

8.
49

8.
00

It
is

ho
pe

d 
th

at
 th

e
ef

fe
ct

s
of

 th
e

re
st

ru
ct

ur
e

of
 th

e
B

en
ef

its
 D

iv
is

io
n

an
d

a
re

du
ct

io
n

in
 s

ta
ff 

tu
rn

ov
er

,w
ill

al
lo

w
an

im
pr

ov
em

en
ti

n
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

fo
r

20
10

/1
1.

LP
I2

3
D

ire
ct

or
of

 F
in

an
ce

an
d 

IC
T

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

90
.0

0%

A
re

vi
se

d
ve

rs
io

n
of

 th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
w

as
ag

re
ed

by
 th

e 
F

in
an

ce
an

d
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

tS
cr

ut
in

y
P

an
el

at
its

m
ee

tin
g

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y

20
10

.

A
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e
(d

ay
s)

 fo
r

pr
oc

es
si

ng
no

tif
ic

at
io

n
of

 c
ha

ng
es

of
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
 fo

r
be

ne
fit

 c
la

im
s.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
m

on
ito

rs
 th

e
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
of

H
ou

si
ng

an
d 

C
ou

nc
il

Ta
x

B
en

ef
it

(L
O

W
).

C
ap

ita
lP

ro
je

ct
s

'C
os

t'.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

is
in

te
nd

ed
 to

m
ea

su
re

 th
e

de
liv

er
y

of
 c

ap
ita

lp
ro

je
ct

s,
an

d 
se

ek
s 

to
en

su
re

 th
at

fo
r

90
%

of
pr

oj
ec

ts
,f

in
al

co
st

s
ar

e
w

ith
in

10
%

(+
/-

)
of

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
tb

ud
ge

tf
or

 th
e

pr
oj

ec
t(

H
IG

H
).

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

m
on

ito
rs

 th
e

ra
te

of
co

lle
ct

io
n

of
 C

ou
nc

il
Ta

x
(H

IG
H

).

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

of
no

n-
do

m
es

tic
ra

te
s 

co
lle

ct
ed

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

m
on

ito
rs

 th
e

ra
te

of
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n
of

N
N

D
R

(H
IG

H
).

A
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e
(d

ay
s)

 fo
r

pr
oc

es
si

ng
ne

w
be

ne
fit

 c
la

im
s.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
m

on
ito

rs
 th

e
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
of

H
ou

si
ng

an
d 

C
ou

nc
il

Ta
x

B
en

ef
it

(L
O

W
).

U
rg

en
tr

ep
ai

rs
un

de
rt

ak
en

w
ith

in
 ta

rg
et

 ti
m

e
(w

ith
in

5
w

or
ki

ng
da

ys
).

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
is

a
m

ea
su

re
of

ho
us

in
g

m
an

ag
em

en
tp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
,a

s
it

is
in

cu
m

be
nt

up
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il

as
la

nd
lo

rd
 to

en
su

re
 th

e
up

ke
ep

of
its

dw
el

lin
gs

an
d 

th
at

re
pa

irs
ar

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

on
 ti

m
e

(H
IG

H
).

R
ou

tin
e

re
pa

irs
un

de
rt

ak
en

w
ith

in
 ta

rg
et

 ti
m

e
(w

ith
in

6
w

ee
ks

).
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

is
a

m
ea

su
re

of
ho

us
in

g
m

an
ag

em
en

tp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

,a
s

it
is

in
cu

m
be

nt
up

on
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
as

la
nd

lo
rd

 to
en

su
re

 th
e

up
ke

ep
of

its
dw

el
lin

gs
an

d 
th

at
re

pa
irs

ar
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
on

 ti
m

e
(H

IG
H

).

S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n
w

ith
re

pa
irs

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

is
a

m
ea

su
re

of
ho

us
in

g
m

an
ag

em
en

tp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

,a
s

it
is

in
cu

m
be

nt
up

on
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
as

la
nd

lo
rd

 to
en

su
re

 th
e

up
ke

ep
of

its
dw

el
lin

gs
an

d 
th

at
re

pa
irs

ar
e

co
m

pl
et

ed
on

 ti
m

e
an

d 
to

 th
e 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n

of
 te

na
nt

s
(H

IG
H

).

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

of
in

vo
ic

es
pa

id
w

ith
in

30
da

ys
of

re
ce

ip
t.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
en

co
ur

ag
es

 th
e

pr
om

pt
pa

ym
en

to
fu

nd
is

pu
te

d
in

vo
ic

es
fo

r 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
go

od
s

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

(H
IG

H
).

Page 28



R
ef

:
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

T
ar

g
et

20
08

/0
9

O
u

tt
u

rn
20

08
/0

9
T

ar
g

et
20

09
/1

0

Q
u

ar
te

r
3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

20
10

/1
1

C
o

m
m

en
ts

/J
u

st
if

ic
at

io
n

fo
r

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

an
d

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

(H
IG

H
/L

O
W

)

LP
I2

4(
a)

D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
E

xe
cu

tiv
e

81
5,

00
0.

00
73

3,
55

1.
00

75
6,

00
0.

00
64

1,
84

9.
00

87
0,

00
0.

00

Th
e

ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 to
ta

lw
eb

si
te

vi
si

ts
fo

r 
th

e
pe

rio
d

fro
m

1
A

pr
il 

to
31

D
ec

em
be

r
20

09
w

as
64

1,
84

9,
m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
an

av
er

ag
e

of
21

0,
00

0
vi

si
ts

pe
r

qu
ar

te
r.

B
as

ed
on

 th
is

pa
tte

rn
of

vi
si

ts
,i

ti
s

es
tim

at
ed

 th
at

 th
e

ou
ttu

rn
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
w

ill
be

85
0,

00
0

w
eb

si
te

vi
si

ts
.

A
t t

hi
s

ra
te

of
in

cr
ea

se
,i

ti
s

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 s
et

a 
ta

rg
et

of
87

0,
00

0
w

eb
si

te
vi

si
ts

fo
r

20
10

/1
1.

LP
I2

4(
b)

D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
E

xe
cu

tiv
e

N
ew

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
N

ew
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

G
ra

de
 2

R
ep

or
te

d
at

ye
ar

-e
nd

G
ra

de
 3

It
is

ho
pe

d 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s

w
eb

si
te

w
ill

ac
hi

ev
e

G
ra

de
2

(T
ra

ns
ac

tio
na

l)
of

 th
e

S
O

C
IT

M
 s

ta
nd

ar
d

fo
r

20
09

/1
0,

an
d 

th
at

 th
is

po
si

tio
n 

ca
n

be
 c

on
so

lid
at

ed
by

 th
e

ac
hi

ev
em

en
to

fG
ra

de
3

in
20

10
/1

1.

LP
I2

8
D

ire
ct

or
of

C
or

po
ra

te
S

up
po

rt
S

er
vi

ce
s

8.
00

10
.5

0
8.

00
6.

19
8.

00

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
M

an
ag

in
g

A
bs

en
ce

P
ol

ic
y 

se
ts

ei
gh

td
ay

s
as

 th
e 

tr
ig

ge
r

le
ve

lf
or

m
an

ag
em

en
ta

ct
io

n.
 It

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e

re
as

on
ab

le
 th

at
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

fo
r

th
is

in
di

ca
to

r 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
re

fle
ct

 th
is

 tr
ig

ge
r

le
ve

l.

LP
I3

9
D

ire
ct

or
of

C
or

po
ra

te
S

up
po

rt
S

er
vi

ce
s

3.
50

%
3.

81
%

3.
00

%
R

ep
or

te
d

at
ye

ar
-e

nd
3.

00
%

Th
e

pr
op

os
ed

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
ha

s
be

en
 s

et
w

ith
ou

t k
no

w
le

dg
e

of
 th

e
fin

al
ou

ttu
rn

fo
r

20
09

/1
0.

Th
er

ef
or

e 
so

m
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
tm

ay
be

ne
ce

ss
ar

y
w

he
n 

th
e

ou
ttu

rn
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
is

 k
no

w
n.

H
ow

ev
er

it
w

ou
ld

 s
ee

m
un

re
al

is
tic

 to
 s

et
a

lo
w

er
 ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1,

gi
ve

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

te
co

no
m

ic
cl

im
at

e.

LP
I4

0
D

ire
ct

or
of

C
or

po
ra

te
S

up
po

rt
S

er
vi

ce
s

97
.0

0%
98

.6
4%

99
.0

0%
R

ep
or

te
d

at
ye

ar
-e

nd
99

.0
0%

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
ha

s
be

en
 s

et
w

ith
ou

t k
no

w
le

dg
e

of
 th

e
fin

al
ou

ttu
rn

fo
r

20
09

/1
0.

Th
er

ef
or

e 
so

m
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
tm

ay
ne

ce
ss

ar
y

w
he

n
th

e
ou

ttu
rn

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

is
 k

no
w

n.
 It

 is
un

lik
el

y 
th

at
a

10
0%

oc
cu

pa
tio

n
ra

te
 c

ou
ld

be
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d
on

a 
su

st
ai

ne
d

ba
si

s,
as

 th
er

e
is

al
w

ay
s

an
el

em
en

to
f t

ur
no

ve
r

gi
ve

n 
th

e 
si

ze
of

 th
e

po
rt

fo
lio

.

LP
I4

1
D

ire
ct

or
of

C
or

po
ra

te
S

up
po

rt
S

er
vi

ce
s

9.
50

%
7.

70
%

8.
00

%
R

ep
or

te
d

at
ye

ar
-e

nd
9.

00
%

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
ha

s
be

en
 s

et
w

ith
ou

t k
no

w
le

dg
e

of
 th

e
fin

al
ou

ttu
rn

fo
r

20
09

/1
0.

Th
er

ef
or

e 
so

m
e

ad
ju

st
m

en
tm

ay
ne

ce
ss

ar
y

w
he

n
th

e
ou

ttu
rn

fo
r 

th
e

is
 k

no
w

n.
  I

t i
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 th

at
 th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

is
of

lim
ite

d
va

lu
e,

as
 th

e
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 y
ie

ld
is

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
m

or
e 

th
an

va
ria

bl
e,

i.e
.r

en
ta

li
nc

om
e

an
d 

ca
pi

ta
lv

al
ue

.A
 c

ha
ng

e
in

 c
ap

ita
lv

al
ue

do
w

nw
ar

ds
w

ill
re

su
lt

in
a

hi
gh

er
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 y
ie

ld
ev

en
if 

th
e

re
nt

al
in

co
m

e
re

m
ai

ns
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

th
e 

sa
m

e.
Th

e
op

po
si

te
w

ou
ld

ap
pl

y
if 

th
er

e
w

as
an

in
cr

ea
se

in
 c

ap
ita

lv
al

ue
,i

.e
. t

he
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 y
ie

ld
w

ou
ld

go
do

w
n.

20
09

/1
0 

sa
w

a
10

.2
%

re
du

ct
io

n
in

 c
ap

ita
lv

al
ue

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e
la

te
st

as
se

t
va

lu
at

io
n.

LP
I4

4

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

Y
es

N
o

Y
es

N
o

Y
es

Th
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
to

f t
he

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k

(L
D

F
)

ha
s

be
en

de
la

ye
d

fo
r 

se
ve

ra
lr

ea
so

ns
,i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e

de
la

ye
d

ad
op

tio
n

of
 th

e
E

as
t

of
E

ng
la

nd
P

la
n

an
d 

th
e

le
ga

l c
ha

lle
ng

es
 th

er
et

o,
an

d 
th

e
di

re
ct

io
n

pl
ac

ed
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il

in
re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e

pr
od

uc
tio

n
of

a 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
tP

la
n

D
oc

um
en

t c
on

ce
rn

in
g

gy
ps

ie
s

an
d 

tr
av

el
le

rs
,w

hi
ch

ha
s

ne
ce

ss
ar

ily
ha

d
to

 ta
ke

pr
io

rit
y.

 It
 is

in
te

nd
ed

 th
at

 th
e

LD
F

w
ill

be
in

pl
ac

e
by

 th
e

m
id

dl
e

of
20

10
/1

1,
w

he
n

ap
pr

op
ria

te
m

ile
st

on
es

w
ill

be
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

Th
e

LD
F

is
in

te
nd

ed
 to

be
a

ro
lli

ng
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

pr
og

ra
m

m
e,

an
d

it
is

 th
er

ef
or

e
co

ns
id

er
ed

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

m
on

ito
r

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
ag

ai
ns

t t
hi

s
in

di
ca

to
r

on
an

an
nu

al
ra

th
er

 th
an

qu
ar

te
rly

ba
si

s
in

fu
tu

re
.

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

to
fm

ile
st

on
es

w
ith

in
Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
tS

ch
em

e.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

en
su

re
s 

th
at

lo
ca

lp
la

nn
in

g
au

th
or

iti
es

pl
an

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y

fo
r 

th
ei

r
ar

ea
s

(N
/A

).

N
um

be
r

of
w

or
ki

ng
da

ys
lo

st
du

e 
to

 s
ic

kn
es

s
ab

se
nc

e.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

m
on

ito
rs

 th
e

le
ve

lo
f s

ta
ff 

si
ck

ne
ss

ab
se

nc
e

ac
ro

ss
 th

e
au

th
or

ity
,a

nd
su

pp
or

ts
 th

e
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

M
an

ag
in

g
A

bs
en

ce
P

ol
ic

y
(L

O
W

).

R
en

ta
rr

ea
rs

as
a

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

re
nt

al
in

co
m

e
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

ho
us

in
g

pr
op

er
ty

).
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

is
a

m
ea

su
re

of
a

lo
ca

la
ut

ho
rit

y'
s

re
nt

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n

an
d

ar
re

ar
s

re
co

ve
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

fo
r

its
pr

op
er

ty
po

rt
fo

lio
(L

O
W

).

T
he

oc
cu

pa
tio

n
ra

te
of

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

an
d

in
du

st
ria

lp
ro

pe
rt

y.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

m
on

ito
rs

 th
e

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s
of

 th
e

lo
ca

la
ut

ho
rit

y'
s

as
se

tm
an

ag
em

en
t

fu
nc

tio
n

(H
IG

H
).

R
en

ta
l v

al
ue

as
a

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 y

ie
ld

of
 th

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
an

d
in

du
st

ria
l

po
rt

fo
lio

as
se

t v
al

ue
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
m

on
ito

rs
 th

e
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s

of
 th

e
lo

ca
l

au
th

or
ity

's
as

se
tm

an
ag

em
en

tf
un

ct
io

n
(H

IG
H

).

T
he

nu
m

be
r

of
 v

is
its

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s

w
eb

si
te

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

m
ea

su
re

s
th

e
nu

m
be

r
of

vi
si

ts
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s
w

eb
si

te
(H

IG
H

).

T
he

qu
al

ity
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il'

s
w

eb
si

te
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
as

se
ss

es
 th

e
qu

al
ity

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s

w
eb

si
te

,u
si

ng
a

na
tio

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
d

de
ve

lo
pe

d
by

 th
e

S
oc

ie
ty

of
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 M
an

ag
em

en
t.

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

ag
ai

ns
t t

hi
s

in
di

ca
to

r
is

re
po

rt
ed

on
 th

e
ba

si
s

of
 th

re
e

gr
ad

es
(G

ra
de

1
-

S
ta

nd
ar

d,
G

ra
de

2
-

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
na

l,
G

ra
de

3
-

E
xc

el
le

nt
)

(H
IG

H
).

Page 29



R
ef

:
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

T
ar

g
et

20
08

/0
9

O
u

tt
u

rn
20

08
/0

9
T

ar
g

et
20

09
/1

0

Q
u

ar
te

r
3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

20
10

/1
1

C
o

m
m

en
ts

/J
u

st
if

ic
at

io
n

fo
r

P
ro

p
o

se
d

T
ar

g
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

D
ef

in
it

io
n

an
d

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

(H
IG

H
/L

O
W

)

LP
I4

5

D
ire

ct
or

of
P

la
nn

in
g

an
d

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

25
.0

0%
40

.3
0%

25
.0

0%
32

.0
0%

To
be

 s
et

in
Ju

ne
20

10
(s

ee
co

m
m

en
t)

M
or

e 
ca

ut
io

n
is

ne
ed

ed
in

de
ci

di
ng

w
he

th
er

 th
er

e
is

a
lik

el
ih

oo
d

of
 th

e
C

ou
nc

il'
s

re
fu

sa
lo

fa
pl

an
ni

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
be

in
g

up
he

ld
on

ap
pe

al
.T

he
P

la
nn

in
g 

In
sp

ec
to

ra
te

ap
pe

ar
s 

to
be

al
lo

w
in

g
m

or
e

ap
pe

al
s

an
d

ar
e

no
t

sy
m

pa
th

et
ic

 to
re

as
on

s 
th

at
ar

e
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
w

ith
ou

te
vi

de
nc

e
in

su
pp

or
t,

or
re

as
on

s
re

ly
in

g 
to

o
m

uc
h

on
de

ta
il,

 s
uc

h
as

de
si

gn
as

pe
ct

s.
Th

e 
F

in
an

ce
an

d
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

tS
cr

ut
in

y
P

an
el

ha
s

pr
ev

io
us

ly
ag

re
ed

 th
at

 th
e

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n
of

a 
tr

ag
et

fo
r 

th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

10
/1

1 
sh

ou
ld

aw
ai

tf
ur

th
er

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n
of

de
le

ga
te

d
au

th
or

ity
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
by

 th
e

P
la

nn
in

g
S

er
vi

ce
s

S
cr

ut
in

y
P

an
el

in
Ju

ne
20

10
.

LP
I4

9
D

ep
ut

y 
C

hi
ef

E
xe

cu
tiv

e
4,

10
0.

00
3,

98
9.

00
4,

10
0.

00
3,

66
6.

00
4,

20
0.

00

F
or

m
al

ed
uc

at
io

n 
se

ss
io

ns
ar

e
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 s
ch

oo
ls

by
 th

e 
M

us
eu

m
ed

uc
at

io
n

of
fic

er
.T

hi
s

of
fic

er
al

so
pr

ov
id

es
 s

es
si

on
s

an
d

w
or

k
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
fo

r
ot

he
r 

ta
rg

et
au

di
en

ce
gr

ou
ps

an
d

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

w
or

ki
ng

 to
ca

pa
ci

ty
,e

du
ca

tio
na

lu
sa

ge
 to

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e

ha
s

be
en

re
co

gn
is

ed
al

re
ad

y
as

ac
hi

ev
ei

ng
 to

p
qu

ar
til

e
re

su
lts

. .
 F

ut
ur

e
gr

ow
th

in
 th

is
ar

ea
is

 ti
ed

 to
re

so
ur

ce
s

an
d

lin
ke

d 
to

 M
us

eu
m

pl
an

s 
to

in
cr

ea
se

 s
pa

ce
an

d
re

so
ur

ce
s

w
ith

in
 th

e 
M

us
eu

m
bu

ild
in

gs
 to

 s
up

po
rt

ed
uc

at
io

na
lv

is
its

.

LP
I5

0
D

ep
ut

y 
C

hi
ef

E
xe

cu
tiv

e
N

ew
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

N
ew

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
90

0.
00

4,
97

8.
00

14
,0

00
.0

0

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

ag
ai

ns
t t

hi
s

in
di

ca
to

r
ha

s
in

cr
ea

se
d

du
e 

to
 th

e
fig

ur
e

in
cl

ud
in

g
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n

in
 th

e
A

ct
iv

e
H

ea
lth

,N
ew

H
or

iz
on

s
an

d
Li

fe
w

al
ks

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

.T
he

S
po

rt
s

an
d

H
ea

lth
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ea
m

w
ill

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
ol

de
r

pe
op

le
,a

nd
  t

he
re

is
 th

er
ef

or
e

an
an

tic
ip

at
ed

in
cr

ea
se

in
 th

e
in

di
ca

to
r.

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
ha

s
be

en
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
in

cr
ea

se
d

fro
m

 th
at

fo
r

20
09

/1
0.

LP
I5

1
D

ire
ct

or
of

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

nd
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne

N
ew

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
N

ew
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

90
.0

0%
95

.6
0%

95
.0

0%

Th
is

is
a

ne
w

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0,
an

d
a

m
od

es
ti

nc
re

as
e

in
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

is
pr

op
os

ed
fo

r
20

10
/1

1,
ba

se
d

on
 c

ur
re

nt
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

.

LP
I5

2(
a)

D
ire

ct
or

of
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
nd

S
tr

ee
tS

ce
ne

N
ew

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
N

ew
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

75
.0

0%
60

.8
4%

95
.0

0%

Th
e

pr
op

os
ed

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
is

pr
ed

ic
at

ed
on

al
le

xi
st

in
g

fla
ts

an
d

co
m

m
un

al
bu

ild
in

gs
be

in
g 

su
rv

ey
ed

,i
n

ad
di

tio
n 

to
al

ln
ew

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

ha
vi

ng
ad

eq
ua

te
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

pr
ov

id
ed

as
pa

rt
of

 th
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

co
nt

ro
l/p

la
nn

in
g

pr
oc

es
s.

LP
I5

2(
b)

D
ire

ct
or

of
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
nd

S
tr

ee
tS

ce
ne

N
ew

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
N

ew
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

85
.0

0%
10

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%

Th
e

pr
op

os
ed

 ta
rg

et
fo

r
20

10
/1

1
is

pr
ed

ic
at

ed
on

al
le

xi
st

in
g

fla
ts

an
d

co
m

m
un

al
bu

ild
in

gs
ha

vi
ng

be
en

 s
ur

ve
ye

d
an

d 
sy

st
em

s
im

pl
em

en
te

d,
in

ad
di

tio
n 

to
al

ln
ew

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

ha
vi

ng
ad

eq
ua

te
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

pr
ov

id
ed

as
pa

rt
of

 th
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

on
tr

ol
/p

la
nn

in
g

pr
oc

es
s.

LP
I5

3
D

ire
ct

or
of

 F
in

an
ce

an
d 

IC
T

N
ew

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
20

09
/1

0
N

ew
in

di
ca

to
r

fo
r

20
09

/1
0

50
0.

00
24

3.
00

50
0.

00

Th
e

ac
hi

ev
em

en
to

f t
hi

s 
ta

rg
et

fo
r

20
10

/1
1

is
de

pe
nd

an
to

n 
th

e
fil

lin
g

of
cu

rr
en

tv
ac

an
ci

es
in

 th
e

B
en

ef
its

 In
te

rv
en

tio
ns

an
d 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
S

ec
tio

n.

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
of

 fo
rm

al
 c

on
ta

in
er

is
ed

re
cy

cl
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

in
 fl

at
s

an
d

co
m

m
un

al
bu

ild
in

gs
(P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
of

 fl
at

s
an

d 
co

m
m

un
al

bu
ild

in
gs

su
rv

ey
ed

).
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

re
po

rt
s 

th
e

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

fla
ts

an
d 

co
m

m
un

al
bu

ild
in

gs
 th

at
ha

ve
be

en
 s

ur
ve

ye
d

fo
r 

th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

 c
on

ta
in

er
is

ed
re

cy
cl

in
g

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
fo

r
at

le
as

t t
w

o
re

cy
cl

ab
le

m
at

er
ia

ls
(H

IG
H

).

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
of

 fo
rm

al
 c

on
ta

in
er

is
ed

re
cy

cl
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

in
 fl

at
s

an
d

co
m

m
un

al
bu

ild
in

gs
(P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
of

 s
ch

em
es

im
pl

em
en

te
d)

.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

re
po

rt
s 

th
e

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

fla
ts

an
d 

co
m

m
un

al
bu

ild
in

gs
w

he
re

co
nt

ai
ne

ris
ed

re
cy

cl
in

g
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

fo
r

at
le

as
t t

w
o

re
cy

cl
ab

le
m

at
er

ia
ls

ha
ve

be
en

im
pl

em
en

te
d

(H
IG

H
).

T
he

nu
m

be
r

of
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 fr
au

d
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 c
ar

rie
d

ou
tb

y 
th

e
B

en
ef

its
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

T
ea

m
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
m

on
ito

rs
 th

e
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s

of
 th

e
B

en
ef

it 
F

ra
ud

Te
am

(H
IG

H
).

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

nd
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
T

ea
m

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
.

D
ea

lin
g

w
ith

'e
nv

iro
-c

rim
e'

is
a 

ke
y

el
em

en
to

f t
he

'S
af

er
, C

le
an

er
,G

re
en

er
'i

ni
tia

tiv
e,

an
d 

th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
e

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

is
su

es
ra

is
ed

an
d

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s

re
ce

iv
ed

by
 th

e
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
nd

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

oo
ds

Te
am

 th
at

ar
e

re
sp

on
de

d 
to

w
ith

in
 th

re
e

w
or

ki
ng

da
ys

(H
IG

H
).

N
um

be
r

of
ap

pe
al

s
al

lo
w

ed
ag

ai
ns

tr
ef

us
al

of
pl

an
ni

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
,a

s
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

of
 th

e 
to

ta
ln

um
be

r
of

ap
pe

al
s

ag
ai

ns
tr

ef
us

al
s.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
se

ek
s 

to
as

se
ss

 th
e

le
ve

ls
of

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 th
at

m
ay

be
re

fu
se

d
in

or
de

r 
to

m
ee

td
ev

el
op

m
en

t c
on

tr
ol

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 ta

rg
et

s
(L

O
W

).

N
um

be
r

of
pu

pi
ls

 v
is

iti
ng

m
us

eu
m

s
an

d
ga

lle
rie

s
in

or
ga

ni
se

d 
sc

ho
ol

gr
ou

ps
.

Th
is

in
di

ca
to

r
en

co
ur

ag
es

lo
ca

la
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

to
m

ak
e

m
us

eu
m

s
m

or
e

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
to

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

an
d 

to
m

ax
im

is
e 

th
ei

r
ed

uc
at

io
na

l
va

lu
e

(H
IG

H
).

T
he

nu
m

be
r

of
el

de
rly

pe
op

le
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g

in
ph

ys
ic

al
ac

tiv
ity

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

pr
ov

id
ed

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
Th

is
in

di
ca

to
r

m
on

ito
rs

 th
e

C
ou

nc
il'

s 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
m

ee
tin

g 
th

e
he

al
th

an
d

w
el

l-b
ei

ng
ne

ed
s

of
th

e
ag

ei
ng

po
pu

la
tio

n.

Page 30



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

K
ey

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs

Page 31



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

K
ey

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs

•
N

I1
54

•
N

I1
55

•
N

I1
56

•
N

I1
57

(a
)

•
N

I1
57

(b
)

•
N

I1
57

(c
)

•
N

I1
58

•
N

I1
59

•
N

I1
60

•
N

I1
79

•
N

I1
81

•
N

I1
82

•
N

I1
85

•
N

I1
86

•
N

I1
87

•
N

I1
88

•
N

I1
91

•
N

I1
92

•
N

I1
94

•
N

I1
95

(a
)

•
N

I1
95

(b
)

•
N

I1
95

(c
)

•
N

I1
95

(d
)

•
N

I1
96

•
LP

I0
1

•
LP

I0
2

(a
)

•
LP

I0
2

(b
)

•
LP

I0
2

(c
)

•
LP

I0
4

•
LP

I0
5

•
LP

I0
7

•
LP

I0
8

•
LP

I0
9

•
LP

I1
0

•
LP

I1
3

•
LP

I1
4

•
LP

I1
5

•
LP

I1
6

•
LP

I1
7

•
LP

I2
3

(a
)

•
LP

I2
4

(a
)

•
LP

I2
4

(b
)

•
LP

I2
8

•
LP

I3
9

•
LP

I4
0

•
LP

I4
1

•
LP

I4
4

•
LP

I4
5

•
LP

I4
9

•
LP

I5
0

•
LP

I5
1

•
LP

I5
2

(a
)

•
LP

I5
2

(b
)

•
LP

I5
3

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 32



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
at

io
na

l I
nd

ic
at

or
M

ap
pi

ng

Page 33



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

54
N

et
A

dd
iti

on
al

H
om

es
P

ro
vi

de
d

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
P

ro
du

ce
Lo

ng
T

er
m

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
S

tr
at

eg
y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
4

–
A

dd
iti

on
al

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
H

ou
si

ng

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 34



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

55
A

ffo
rd

ab
le

H
om

es
P

ro
vi

de
d

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
B

et
te

r
lin

ks
w

ith
go

vt
. f

un
di

ng
ag

en
ci

es

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

5
–

E
st

ab
lis

h
pr

io
rit

ie
s

in
LD

F
&

pr
od

uc
e 

G
re

en
S

tr
at

eg
y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
C

or
po

ra
te

M
ed

iu
m

T
er

m
A

im
s

A
im

1
–

S
af

eg
ua

rd
 fr

on
tli

ne
se

rv
ic

es

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-H

ou
si

ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-H

ou
si

ng
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
n

D
ev

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 35



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

56
H

ou
se

ho
ld

s
Li

vi
ng

in
T

em
po

ra
ry

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
7

–
S

up
po

rt
 th

e
pr

ov
is

io
n

of
af

fo
rd

ab
le

&
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lly

 fr
ie

nd
ly

ho
us

in
g

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

8
–

P
rio

rit
is

e
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 to

re
du

ce
 th

e
ga

p
in

he
al

th
in

eq
ua

lit
y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

11
–

C
ha

lle
ng

e
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
vu

ln
er

ab
le

yo
un

g
pe

op
le

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
4

–
A

dd
iti

on
al

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
H

ou
si

ng

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
7

–
Im

pr
ov

e
B

en
ef

its
S

er
vi

ce

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
8

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g

Lo
ca

l
C

hi
ld

re
n

&
Y

ou
ng

P
eo

pl
e

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:

-H
ou

si
ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:

-H
ou

si
ng

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 36



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

57
(a

)
P

ro
ce

ss
in

g
of

pl
an

ni
ng

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

–
‘M

aj
or

’

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
E

st
ab

lis
h

pr
io

rit
ie

s
in

LD
F

&
pr

od
uc

e 
G

re
en

S
tr

at
eg

y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
4

–
A

dd
iti

on
al

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
H

ou
si

ng

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
D

el
iv

er
a

so
un

d
C

or
e

S
tr

at
eg

y
of

 th
e

LD
F

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 37



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

57
(b

)
P

ro
ce

ss
in

g
of

pl
an

ni
ng

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

–
‘M

in
or

’

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
E

st
ab

lis
h

pr
io

rit
ie

s
in

LD
F

&
pr

od
uc

e 
G

re
en

S
tr

at
eg

y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
4

–
A

dd
iti

on
al

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
H

ou
si

ng

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
D

el
iv

er
a

so
un

d
C

or
e

S
tr

at
eg

y
of

 th
e

LD
F

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 38



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

57
(c

)
P

ro
ce

ss
in

g
of

pl
an

ni
ng

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

–
‘O

th
er

’

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
E

st
ab

lis
h

pr
io

rit
ie

s
in

LD
F

&
pr

od
uc

e 
G

re
en

S
tr

at
eg

y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
4

–
A

dd
iti

on
al

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
H

ou
si

ng

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
D

el
iv

er
a

so
un

d
C

or
e

S
tr

at
eg

y
of

 th
e

LD
F

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 39



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

58
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
of

N
on

-d
ec

en
tC

ou
nc

il
H

om
es

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
B

et
te

r
lin

ks
w

ith
go

vt
. f

un
di

ng
ag

en
ci

es

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-H
ou

si
ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:

-H
ou

si
ng

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 40



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

59
S

up
pl

y
of

R
ea

dy
T

o
D

ev
el

op
H

ou
si

ng
S

ite
s

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
E

st
ab

lis
h

pr
io

rit
ie

s
in

LD
F

&
pr

od
uc

e 
G

re
en

S
tr

at
eg

y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

6
–

P
ro

du
ce

Lo
ng

T
er

m
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

S
tr

at
eg

y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
4

–
A

dd
iti

on
al

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
H

ou
si

ng

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
D

el
iv

er
a

so
un

d
C

or
e

S
tr

at
eg

y
of

 th
e

LD
F

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
5

–
C

om
m

un
ity

le
ad

er
sh

ip
&

pr
ot

ec
tE

F
D

C
ch

ar
ac

te
r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-L
ea

de
r’s

P
or

tfo
lio

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 41



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

60
Lo

ca
lA

ut
ho

rit
y

T
en

an
ts

’S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n
W

ith
La

nd
lo

rd

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
7

–
Im

pr
ov

e
B

en
ef

its
S

er
vi

ce

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

S
T

A
T

U
S

su
rv

ey

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-H
ou

si
ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:

-H
ou

si
ng

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 42



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

79
V

al
ue

 F
or

M
on

ey

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
B

et
te

r
lin

ks
w

ith
go

vt
. f

un
di

ng
ag

en
ci

es

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

2
–

B
et

te
r

jo
in

ed
-

up
se

rv
ic

es
lo

ca
lly

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
F

in
an

ci
al

P
os

iti
on

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
9

–
A

ch
ie

ve
S

av
in

gs
fr

om
M

T
F

S

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
12

–
C

om
m

er
ci

al
la

nd
ho

ld
in

gs
&

va
lu

e 
fo

r
m

on
ey

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

2
–

Lo
w

es
tC

ou
nc

il
T

ax
in

E
ss

ex

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-
A

ll
E

F
D

C

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-

A
ll

E
F

D
C

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 43



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

81
H

ou
si

ng
/C

ou
nc

il
T

ax
B

en
ef

it
–

C
la

im
s

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
7

–
Im

pr
ov

e
B

en
ef

its
S

er
vi

ce

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

 IC
T

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 44



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

82
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n

W
ith

Lo
ca

lA
ut

ho
rit

y
R

eg
ul

at
io

n
S

er
vi

ce
s

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
B

et
te

r
lin

ks
w

ith
go

vt
. f

un
di

ng
ag

en
ci

es

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

2
–

B
et

te
r

jo
in

ed
-

up
se

rv
ic

es
lo

ca
lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

3
–

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

to
 ta

ck
le

 fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

&
m

ak
e

co
m

m
un

iti
es

sa
fe

r

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

-L
eg

al
&

E
st

-H
ou

si
ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-E

&
S

S
-H

ou
si

ng
-C

S
S

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 45



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

85
C

O
2

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 F

ro
m

Lo
ca

lA
ut

ho
rit

y
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
E

st
ab

lis
h

pr
io

rit
ie

s
in

LD
F

&
pr

od
uc

e 
G

re
en

S
tr

at
eg

y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
D

el
iv

er
a

so
un

d
C

or
e

S
tr

at
eg

y
of

 th
e

LD
F

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
11

–
C

ou
nc

il’
s

re
cy

cl
in

g
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
12

–
C

om
m

er
ci

al
la

nd
ho

ld
in

gs
&

va
lu

e 
fo

r
m

on
ey

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
3

–
In

no
va

tio
n

&
 to

p
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

-L
eg

al
&

E
st

at
es

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
n

D
ev

-C
S

S

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 46



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

86
P

er
C

ap
ita

R
ed

uc
tio

n
in

C
O

2
E

m
is

si
on

s

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
E

st
ab

lis
h

pr
io

rit
ie

s
in

LD
F

&
pr

od
uc

e 
G

re
en

S
tr

at
eg

y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
D

el
iv

er
a

so
un

d
C

or
e

S
tr

at
eg

y
of

 th
e

LD
F

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
11

–
C

ou
nc

il’
s

re
cy

cl
in

g
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
12

–
C

om
m

er
ci

al
la

nd
ho

ld
in

gs
&

va
lu

e 
fo

r
m

on
ey

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
3

–
In

no
va

tio
n

&
 to

p
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

D
E

C
C

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 47



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

87
T

ac
kl

in
g

F
ue

lP
ov

er
ty

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
E

st
ab

lis
h

pr
io

rit
ie

s
in

LD
F

&
pr

od
uc

e 
G

re
en

S
tr

at
eg

y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

8
–

P
rio

rit
is

e
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 to

re
du

ce
 th

e
ga

p
in

he
al

th
in

eq
ua

lit
y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

11
–

C
ha

lle
ng

e
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
vu

ln
er

ab
le

yo
un

g
pe

op
le

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
8

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g

Lo
ca

l
C

hi
ld

re
n

&
Y

ou
ng

P
eo

pl
e

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 48



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

88
P

la
nn

in
g 

to
A

da
pt

 to
C

lim
at

e
C

ha
ng

e

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
B

et
te

r
lin

ks
w

ith
go

vt
. f

un
di

ng
ag

en
ci

es

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

2
–

B
et

te
r

jo
in

ed
-

up
se

rv
ic

es
lo

ca
lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

5
–

E
st

ab
lis

h
pr

io
rit

ie
s

in
LD

F
&

pr
od

uc
e 

G
re

en
S

tr
at

eg
y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
D

el
iv

er
a

so
un

d
C

or
e

S
tr

at
eg

y
of

 th
e

LD
F

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
11

–
C

ou
nc

il’
s

re
cy

cl
in

g
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
12

–
C

om
m

er
ci

al
la

nd
ho

ld
in

gs
&

va
lu

e 
fo

r
m

on
ey

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 49



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

91
R

es
id

ua
lH

ou
se

ho
ld

W
as

te
P

er
H

ou
se

ho
ld

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

5
–

E
st

ab
lis

h
pr

io
rit

ie
s

in
LD

F
&

pr
od

uc
e 

G
re

en
S

tr
at

eg
y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
11

–
C

ou
nc

il’
s

re
cy

cl
in

g
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

S
IT

A
 / 

E
ss

ex
C

C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t&
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 50



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

92
H

ou
se

ho
ld

W
as

te
R

ec
yc

le
d

an
d

C
om

po
st

ed

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

5
–

E
st

ab
lis

h
pr

io
rit

ie
s

in
LD

F
&

pr
od

uc
e 

G
re

en
S

tr
at

eg
y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
11

–
C

ou
nc

il’
s

re
cy

cl
in

g
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

F
ro

nt
lin

e
se

rv
ic

es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

S
IT

A
 / 

E
ss

ex
C

C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t&
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 51



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

94
A

ir
Q

ua
lit

y
(L

oc
al

A
ut

ho
rit

y
E

st
at

e
an

d
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

5
–

E
st

ab
lis

h
pr

io
rit

ie
s

in
LD

F
&

pr
od

uc
e 

G
re

en
S

tr
at

eg
y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
D

el
iv

er
a

so
un

d
C

or
e

S
tr

at
eg

y
of

 th
e

LD
F

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
11

–
C

ou
nc

il’
s

re
cy

cl
in

g
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
12

–
C

om
m

er
ci

al
la

nd
ho

ld
in

gs
&

va
lu

e 
fo

r
m

on
ey

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
3

–
In

no
va

tio
n

&
 to

p
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

 / 
D

E
F

R
A

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

-L
eg

al
&

E
st

at
es

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
n

D
ev

-C
S

S

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 52



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

95
(a

) 
Im

pr
ov

ed
S

tr
ee

ta
nd

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l
C

le
an

lin
es

s
(L

itt
er

)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

3
–

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

to
 ta

ck
le

 fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

&
m

ak
e

co
m

m
un

iti
es

sa
fe

r

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

4
–

D
el

iv
er

m
or

e
in

te
gr

at
ed

co
m

m
un

ity
sa

fe
ty

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

D
E

F
R

A
 / 

E
N

C
A

M
S

4-
m

on
th

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t&
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 53



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

95
(b

) 
Im

pr
ov

ed
S

tr
ee

ta
nd

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l
C

le
an

lin
es

s
(D

et
rit

us
)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

3
–

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

to
 ta

ck
le

 fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

&
m

ak
e

co
m

m
un

iti
es

sa
fe

r

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

4
–

D
el

iv
er

m
or

e
in

te
gr

at
ed

co
m

m
un

ity
sa

fe
ty

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

D
E

F
R

A
 / 

E
N

C
A

M
S

4-
m

on
th

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t&
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 54



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

95
(c

)
Im

pr
ov

ed
S

tr
ee

ta
nd

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l
C

le
an

lin
es

s
(G

ra
ffi

ti)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

3
–

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

to
 ta

ck
le

 fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

&
m

ak
e

co
m

m
un

iti
es

sa
fe

r

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

4
–

D
el

iv
er

m
or

e
in

te
gr

at
ed

co
m

m
un

ity
sa

fe
ty

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

D
E

F
R

A
 / 

E
N

C
A

M
S

4-
m

on
th

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t&
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 55



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

95
(d

) 
Im

pr
ov

ed
S

tr
ee

ta
nd

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l
C

le
an

lin
es

s
(F

ly
-P

os
tin

g)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

3
–

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

to
 ta

ck
le

 fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

&
m

ak
e

co
m

m
un

iti
es

sa
fe

r

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

4
–

D
el

iv
er

m
or

e
in

te
gr

at
ed

co
m

m
un

ity
sa

fe
ty

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

D
E

F
R

A
 / 

E
N

C
A

M
S

4-
m

on
th

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t&
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 56



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

N
I1

96
Im

pr
ov

ed
S

tr
ee

ta
nd

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

lC
le

an
lin

es
s

(F
ly

-T
ip

pi
ng

)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

3
–

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

to
 ta

ck
le

 fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

&
m

ak
e

co
m

m
un

iti
es

sa
fe

r

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

4
–

D
el

iv
er

m
or

e
in

te
gr

at
ed

co
m

m
un

ity
sa

fe
ty

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

A
ge

nc
y

F
ly

C
ap

tu
re

Q
ua

rt
er

ly

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t&
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

N
at

io
na

lI
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 57



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
M

ap
pi

ng

Page 58



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I0

1
E

qu
al

ity
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k
fo

r
Lo

ca
lG

ov
er

nm
en

t

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
8

–
P

rio
rit

is
e

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 to
re

du
ce

 th
e

ga
p

in
he

al
th

in
eq

ua
lit

y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
C

or
po

ra
te

M
ed

iu
m

T
er

m
A

im
s

A
im

1
–

S
af

eg
ua

rd
 fr

on
tli

ne
se

rv
ic

es

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y
&

pa
rt

ne
r

w
or

ki
ng

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

S
el

f-
A

ss
es

sm
en

t

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-L
ei

su
re

&
W

el
lb

ei
ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-O

ffi
ce

of
 th

e
D

ep
ut

y
C

hi
ef

E
xe

cu
tiv

e

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 59



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I0

2
(a

)
Li

ce
nc

e
A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

W
ith

in
T

ar
ge

ts
(P

re
m

is
es

)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

6
–

P
ro

du
ce

Lo
ng

T
er

m
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

S
tr

at
eg

y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-L

eg
al

&
E

st
at

es

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-C

or
po

ra
te

S
up

po
rt

S
er

vi
ce

s

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 60



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I0

2
(b

)
Li

ce
nc

e
A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

W
ith

in
T

ar
ge

ts
(T

em
po

ra
ry

E
ve

nt
)

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-L

eg
al

&
E

st
at

es

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-C

or
po

ra
te

S
up

po
rt

S
er

vi
ce

s

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

6
–

P
ro

du
ce

Lo
ng

T
er

m
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

S
tr

at
eg

y

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 61



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I0

2
(c

)
Li

ce
nc

e
A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
P

ro
ce

ss
ed

W
ith

in
T

ar
ge

ts
(H

ac
kn

ey
C

ar
ria

ge
&

P
riv

at
e

H
ire

)

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-L

eg
al

&
E

st
at

es

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-C

or
po

ra
te

S
up

po
rt

S
er

vi
ce

s

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

6
–

P
ro

du
ce

Lo
ng

T
er

m
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

S
tr

at
eg

y

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 62



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I0

4
R

en
tC

ol
le

ct
io

n
(H

ou
si

ng
R

ev
en

ue
A

cc
ou

nt
D

w
el

lin
gs

)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
P

ro
du

ce
Lo

ng
T

er
m

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
S

tr
at

eg
y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
F

in
an

ci
al

P
os

iti
on

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
7

–
Im

pr
ov

e
B

en
ef

its
S

er
vi

ce

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-H

ou
si

ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-H

ou
si

ng

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 63



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I0

5
R

e-
le

tti
ng

of
C

ou
nc

il
D

w
el

lin
gs

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
8

–
In

te
rv

en
tio

ns
to

re
du

ce
he

al
th

in
eq

ua
lit

y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
F

in
an

ci
al

P
os

iti
on

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
4

–
A

dd
iti

on
al

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
H

ou
si

ng

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-H

ou
si

ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-H

ou
si

ng

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 64



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I0

7
E

m
er

ge
nc

y
R

ep
ai

rs
(H

ou
si

ng
R

ev
en

ue
A

cc
ou

nt
D

w
el

lin
gs

)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

3
–

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

to
 ta

ck
le

 fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

&
m

ak
e

co
m

m
un

iti
es

sa
fe

r

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-H

ou
si

ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-H

ou
si

ng

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 65



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I0

8
U

rg
en

tR
ep

ai
rs

(H
ou

si
ng

R
ev

en
ue

A
cc

ou
nt

D
w

el
lin

gs
)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

3
–

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

to
 ta

ck
le

 fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

&
m

ak
e

co
m

m
un

iti
es

sa
fe

r

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-H

ou
si

ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-H

ou
si

ng

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 66



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I0

9
R

ou
tin

e
R

ep
ai

rs
(H

ou
si

ng
R

ev
en

ue
A

cc
ou

nt
D

w
el

lin
gs

)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

3
–

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

to
 ta

ck
le

 fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

&
m

ak
e

co
m

m
un

iti
es

sa
fe

r

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-H

ou
si

ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-H

ou
si

ng

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 67



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I1

0
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n

W
ith

R
ep

ai
rs

(H
ou

si
ng

R
ev

en
ue

A
cc

ou
nt

D
w

el
lin

gs
)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

3
–

P
ro

gr
am

m
es

to
 ta

ck
le

 fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

&
m

ak
e

co
m

m
un

iti
es

sa
fe

r

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

7
–

S
up

po
rt

 th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

af
fo

rd
ab

le
&

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
ho

us
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
R

ed
uc

e
ac

tu
al

cr
im

e
&

 th
e 

fe
ar

of
cr

im
e

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-H

ou
si

ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-H

ou
si

ng

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 68



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I1

3
P

ay
m

en
to

fI
nv

oi
ce

s

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

6
–

P
ro

du
ce

Lo
ng

T
er

m
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

S
tr

at
eg

y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
F

in
an

ci
al

P
os

iti
on

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

 IC
T

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 69



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I1

4
C

ou
nc

il
T

ax
C

ol
le

ct
io

n

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
C

ab
in

et
K

ey
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
F

in
an

ci
al

P
os

iti
on

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

2
–

Lo
w

es
tC

ou
nc

il
T

ax
in

E
ss

ex

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

 IC
T

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 70



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I1

5
N

at
io

na
lN

on
-D

om
es

tic
R

at
es

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
C

ab
in

et
K

ey
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
F

in
an

ci
al

P
os

iti
on

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

2
–

Lo
w

es
tC

ou
nc

il
T

ax
in

E
ss

ex

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

 IC
T

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 71



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I1

6
H

ou
si

ng
 / 

C
ou

nc
il

T
ax

B
en

ef
it

–
N

ew
C

la
im

s
P

ro
ce

ss
in

g
(T

im
e)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
7

–
Im

pr
ov

e
B

en
ef

its
S

er
vi

ce

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

 IC
T

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 72



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I1

7
H

ou
si

ng
 / 

C
ou

nc
il

T
ax

B
en

ef
it

–
C

ha
ng

es
O

f
C

irc
um

st
an

ce
P

ro
ce

ss
in

g
(T

im
e)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
7

–
Im

pr
ov

e
B

en
ef

its
S

er
vi

ce

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

 IC
T

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 73



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I2

3
(a

)
C

ap
ita

lP
ro

je
ct

s
(C

os
t)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
C

ab
in

et
K

ey
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
F

in
an

ci
al

P
os

iti
on

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
2

–
Lo

w
es

tC
ou

nc
il

T
ax

in
E

ss
ex

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y
&

pa
rt

ne
r

w
or

ki
ng

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-F
in

an
ce

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

 IC
T

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 74



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I2

4
(a

)
V

is
its

 to
 th

e
C

ou
nc

il’
s

W
eb

si
te

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
9

–
A

ch
ie

ve
S

av
in

gs
fr

om
M

T
F

S

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y
&

pa
rt

ne
r

w
or

ki
ng

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-L

eg
al

&
E

st
at

es

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-O

ffi
ce

of
 th

e
D

ep
ut

y
C

hi
ef

E
xe

cu
tiv

e

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 75



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I2

4
(b

)
Q

ua
lit

y
of

th
e

C
ou

nc
il’

s
W

eb
si

te

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
9

–
A

ch
ie

ve
S

av
in

gs
fr

om
M

T
F

S

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
10

–
B

en
ef

it 
fr

om
in

ve
st

m
en

ti
n 

IC
T

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y
&

pa
rt

ne
r

w
or

ki
ng

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

S
O

C
IT

M
S

ur
ve

y

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-L
eg

al
&

E
st

at
es

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-O

ffi
ce

of
 th

e
D

ep
ut

y
C

hi
ef

E
xe

cu
tiv

e

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 76



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I2

8
W

or
ki

ng
D

ay
s

Lo
st

to
S

ic
kn

es
s

A
bs

en
ce

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
C

ab
in

et
K

ey
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
2

–
Lo

w
es

tC
ou

nc
il

T
ax

in
E

ss
ex

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y
&

pa
rt

ne
r

w
or

ki
ng

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
M

an
ag

em
en

t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-C

or
po

ra
te

S
up

po
rt

S
er

vi
ce

s

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 77



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I3

9
R

en
tA

rr
ea

rs
(C

om
m

er
ci

al
an

d 
In

du
st

ria
l

P
ro

pe
rt

y)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
P

ro
du

ce
Lo

ng
T

er
m

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
S

tr
at

eg
y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
F

in
an

ci
al

P
os

iti
on

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
9

–
A

ch
ie

ve
S

av
in

gs
fr

om
M

T
F

S

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
12

–
C

om
m

er
ci

al
la

nd
ho

ld
in

gs
&

va
lu

e 
fo

r
m

on
ey

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
2

–
Lo

w
es

tC
ou

nc
il

T
ax

in
E

ss
ex

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y
&

pa
rt

ne
r

w
or

ki
ng

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-L
eg

al
&

E
st

at
es

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-C

or
po

ra
te

S
up

po
rt

S
er

vi
ce

s

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 78



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I4

0
O

cc
up

at
io

n
R

at
e

(C
om

m
er

ci
al

an
d 

In
du

st
ria

l
P

ro
pe

rt
y)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
P

ro
du

ce
Lo

ng
T

er
m

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
S

tr
at

eg
y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
F

in
an

ci
al

P
os

iti
on

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
9

–
A

ch
ie

ve
S

av
in

gs
fr

om
M

T
F

S

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
12

–
C

om
m

er
ci

al
la

nd
ho

ld
in

gs
&

va
lu

e 
fo

r
m

on
ey

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
2

–
Lo

w
es

tC
ou

nc
il

T
ax

in
E

ss
ex

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y
&

pa
rt

ne
r

w
or

ki
ng

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-L
eg

al
&

E
st

at
es

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-C

or
po

ra
te

S
up

po
rt

S
er

vi
ce

s

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 79



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I4

1
R

en
ta

lY
ie

ld
(C

om
m

er
ci

al
an

d
In

du
st

ria
l

P
ro

pe
rt

y)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
P

ro
du

ce
Lo

ng
T

er
m

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
S

tr
at

eg
y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
F

in
an

ci
al

P
os

iti
on

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
M

iti
ga

te
E

co
no

m
ic

C
on

di
tio

ns

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
9

–
A

ch
ie

ve
S

av
in

gs
fr

om
M

T
F

S

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
12

–
C

om
m

er
ci

al
la

nd
ho

ld
in

gs
&

va
lu

e 
fo

r
m

on
ey

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
2

–
Lo

w
es

tC
ou

nc
il

T
ax

in
E

ss
ex

A
im

4
–

Im
pr

ov
ed

ef
fic

ie
nc

y
&

pa
rt

ne
r

w
or

ki
ng

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-L
eg

al
&

E
st

at
es

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-C

or
po

ra
te

S
up

po
rt

S
er

vi
ce

s

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 80



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I4

4
M

ile
st

on
es

W
ith

in
Lo

ca
lD

ev
el

op
m

en
t

F
ra

m
ew

or
k

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
E

st
ab

lis
h

pr
io

rit
ie

s
in

LD
F

&
pr

od
uc

e 
G

re
en

S
tr

at
eg

y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
D

el
iv

er
a

so
un

d
C

or
e

S
tr

at
eg

y
of

 th
e

LD
F

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
5

–
C

om
m

un
ity

le
ad

er
sh

ip
&

pr
ot

ec
tE

F
D

C
ch

ar
ac

te
r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

A
nn

ua
l

P
o

rt
fo

lio
:

-L
ea

de
r’s

P
or

tfo
lio

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 81



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I4

5
P

la
nn

in
g

A
pp

ea
ls

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
5

–
E

st
ab

lis
h

pr
io

rit
ie

s
in

LD
F

&
pr

od
uc

e 
G

re
en

S
tr

at
eg

y

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
6

–
D

el
iv

er
a

so
un

d
C

or
e

S
tr

at
eg

y
of

 th
e

LD
F

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

2
–

Lo
w

es
tC

ou
nc

il
T

ax
in

E
ss

ex

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-P

la
nn

in
g

&
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 82



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I4

9
P

up
ils

V
is

iti
ng

M
us

eu
m

s
an

d
G

al
le

rie
s

in
O

rg
an

is
ed

S
ch

oo
lG

ro
up

s

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
9

–
P

ro
je

ct
s 

to
pr

om
ot

e
he

al
th

y
liv

in
g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-L

ei
su

re
&

W
el

lb
ei

ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-O

ffi
ce

of
 th

e
D

ep
ut

y
C

hi
ef

E
xe

cu
tiv

e

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 83



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I5

0
P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n

in
P

hy
si

ca
lA

ct
iv

ity
P

ro
gr

am
m

es

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
8

–
P

rio
rit

is
e

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 to
re

du
ce

 th
e

ga
p

in
he

al
th

in
eq

ua
lit

y

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

9
–

P
ro

je
ct

s 
to

pr
om

ot
e

he
al

th
y

liv
in

g

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
im

5
–

C
om

m
un

ity
le

ad
er

sh
ip

&
pr

ot
ec

tE
F

D
C

ch
ar

ac
te

r

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-L

ei
su

re
&

W
el

lb
ei

ng

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-O

ffi
ce

of
 th

e
D

ep
ut

y
C

hi
ef

E
xe

cu
tiv

e

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 84



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I5

1
C

om
pl

ai
nt

s
R

es
po

ns
e

(E
nv

iro
-C

rim
e

an
d

R
ap

id
R

es
po

ns
e)

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
3

–
P

ro
gr

am
m

es
to

 ta
ck

le
 fe

ar
of

cr
im

e
&

m
ak

e
co

m
m

un
iti

es
sa

fe
r

S
C

S
 O

bj
ec

tiv
e

4
–

D
el

iv
er

m
or

e
in

te
gr

at
ed

co
m

m
un

ity
sa

fe
ty

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t&
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 85



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I5

2
(a

) 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n
of

re
cy

cl
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

(f
la

ts
an

d
co

m
m

un
al

bu
ild

in
gs

)
–

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

su
rv

ey
ed

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
11

–
C

ou
nc

il’
s

re
cy

cl
in

g
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t&
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 86



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I5

2
(b

) 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n
of

re
cy

cl
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

(f
la

ts
an

d
co

m
m

un
al

bu
ild

in
gs

)
–

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

of
sc

he
m

es
im

pl
em

en
te

d

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
S

C
S

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
B

et
te

r
jo

in
ed

-
up

se
rv

ic
es

lo
ca

lly

C
ab

in
et

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
11

–
C

ou
nc

il’
s

re
cy

cl
in

g
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

A
im

3
–

In
no

va
tio

n
&

 to
p

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-E

nv
iro

nm
en

t&
S

tr
ee

tS
ce

ne

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 87



B
ac

k
H

om
e

E
xi

t

LP
I5

3
H

ou
si

ng
 / 

C
ou

nc
il

T
ax

B
en

ef
it

–
F

ra
ud

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

C
om

m
un

ity
S

tr
at

eg
y

K
ey

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
C

ab
in

et
K

ey
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
1

–
F

in
an

ci
al

P
os

iti
on

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
2

–
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t

C
or

po
ra

te
M

ed
iu

m
T

er
m

A
im

s
A

im
1

–
S

af
eg

ua
rd

 fr
on

tli
ne

se
rv

ic
es

D
at

a
S

ou
rc

e
&

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y

E
F

D
C

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
P

o
rt

fo
lio

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

E
co

no
m

ic
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

:
-F

in
an

ce
&

 IC
T

<
B

ac
k 

to
K

P
I I

nd
ex

Lo
ca

l I
nd

ic
at

or
s

Page 88



   
   
   
 1 

Report to Finance and Performance  
Management Scrutiny Panel 
 
 
Date of meeting: 22 April 2010 
  
 
Subject:  Epping Forest Tracker Survey 2009 Research Report 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Valerie Loftis (Ext 4471) 
 
Committee Secretary:  Adrian Hendry 
 
 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
To consider the Epping Forest Tracker Survey 2009 Research Report. 
 
Report: 
 
1. In 2008, The Government produced a new performance framework for Local 
Authorities, outlined in the Strong and Prosperous Communities White Paper. This Paper 
contained the new National Indicator measures to address improvement in quality of life in 
‘places’ and enable provision of better public services across the country. 
 
2. The ‘Place Survey’ was introduced as a mechanism for measuring public opinion on 
local services provided, which contains 18 National Indicator questions within the new 
National Indicator Set. Within Essex, BMG Research was appointed to undertake the ‘Place 
Survey’ across the District and Borough Councils. The survey carried out for Epping Forest 
District took place in November 2008 and included functions provided by the Council and its’ 
local partners involved in the Local Strategic Partnership, ‘One Epping Forest’. 
 
3. Some of the Essex District Local Authorities chose to undertake a further non- 
statutory ‘follow up’ survey, in order to track any changes in resident’s perception and to 
identify areas of improvement and those in need of further development. The Council 
appointed Ipsos Mori to undertake this work and a ‘Tracker Survey’ was carried out in 
November 2009. A postal questionnaire was distributed to a random sample of 1,013 
residents, who were asked exactly the same questions as in the ‘Place Survey’, about where 
they live, their views on public services and perceptions of social cohesion.  
 
4. The following chart is taken from the ‘Tracker Survey’ report and shows the District 
Council’s results against the National Indicators and a comparison to the Place Survey 
results of 2008. The net difference is highlighted in percentage points. The report does not 
currently compare Epping Forest District’s results with other districts, as it was not designed 
as a compulsory tool. It also does not give reasons for significant changes in responses and 
does not analyse public opinion at ward level.  
 
Key Findings 
 
Place Survey National Indicator Results for Epping Forest 
 2008/09 

% 
2009/10 

% 
Difference 

 
NI1: % of people who believe people from different 78.3 78.0 0.3 

Agenda Item 7

Page 89



   
   
   
 2 

backgrounds get on well together in their local area  
NI2: % of people who feel that they belong to their 
neighbourhood 

62.6 62.1 0.5 
 

NI3: Civic participation in the local area 12.7 13.9 1.2 
 

NI4: % of people who feel they can influence 
decisions in their locality 

25.2 28.8 3.6 
 

NI5: Overall/general satisfaction with local area 86.7 84.8 1.9 
 

NI6: Participation in regular volunteering 25.2 26.1 0.9 
 

NI17: Perceptions of anti-social behaviour 17.8 15.5 2.3 
 

NI21: Dealing with local concerns about anti-social 
behaviour and crime issues by the local council and 
police 

24.2 n/a  n/a 

NI22: Perceptions of parents taking responsibility for 
the behaviour of their children in the area 

26.3 28.9 2.6 
 

NI23: Perceptions that people in the area treat one 
another with respect and consideration 

29.6 25.7 3.9 
 

NI27: Understanding of local concerns about anti-
social behaviour and crime issues by the local 
council and police 

18.4 n/a n/a 
 

NI37: Awareness of civil protection arrangements in 
the local area 

12.1 27.3 15.2 
 

NI41: Perceptions of drunk or rowdy behaviour as a 
problem 

26.5 25.2 1.3 
 

NI42: Perceptions of drug use or drug dealing as a 
problem 

25.5 25.6 0.1 
 

NI119: Self-reported measure of people’s overall 
health and well-being 

76.5 72.4 4.1 
 

NI138: Satisfaction of people over 65 with both 
home and neighbourhood 

86.6 91.3 4.7 
 

NI139: The extent to which older people receive the 
support they need to live independently 

22.3 22.1 0.2 
 

NI140: Fair treatment by local services 74.1 78.5 4.4 
 
Please note: NI 21 and NI 27 were not asked in the EssexWorks Place Survey Tracker 
2009/10. Not all differences are statistically significant, and it is not automatically the case 
that every time there is an increase in the figure that it implies a positive finding. 
Consequently, we have used colour coding to identify the meaning behind the differences. 
_ Differences in font colour red are statistically significant and negative. 
_ Differences in font colour green are statistically significant and positive. 
_ Differences in font colour grey are not statistically significant. 
 
 

1.0  Significant improvements  
 

1.1      There were four indicators which significantly improved from 2008 to 2009. These 
were: 

 

1.2  (NI4): The percentage of people who feel they can influence decisions in their locality 
(+3.6); The Council continues to enhance its candidates’ information pack which is 
available via the website or in hard copy by application to the Council. When 
nomination details are sent, this advice pack is included. Generally the pack is well 
received. The Constitution & Member Services SSP discussed the possibility of 

Page 90



   
   
   
 3 

holding a candidates’ briefing session to build on the information in the pack but this 
did not find favour at member level. This was due:  

 
a) to the difficulty of agreeing when the session would best be held, and 
 
b) the confidentiality for the prospective candidates which was sought by the political 
parties. 

 
Such a session was not ruled out for the future however. 

 
1.3       A great deal of work has been carried out with the local Youth Council on local 

democracy and this together with more material being placed on the website about 
registering to vote and how elections operate may explain in part why public 
perceptions have been more favourable. The imminent General Election may be 
relevant too.   

 

1.4         (NI23): Perceptions that people in the area treat one another with respect and 
consideration (+3.9); More people agree that parents are taking responsibility for their 
children (up by 3%). An overall 2% improvement in volunteering. Overall perceptions 
of anti-social behaviour has dropped by 3% in the year 2008 to 2009. 

 

1.4             (NI37): Awareness of civil protection arrangements in the local area (+15.2); Public 
perception. Huge amounts of information were issued at local and national 
government agency level in order to raise public awareness of swine flu. The issue 
received massive amounts of local and national media coverage. Few people were 
unaware of swine flu at the time and this may have had an impact on this particular 
indicator. 

  
1.5       (NI140): Fair treatment by local services (+4.4). Whilst there is no single action that 

can be identified as responsible for this significant improvement in people’s 
perception, an assumption could be made that improved communication and 
opportunities for residents to be involved in local decision making will have 
contributed to this result.    

 

2.0 Significant negative changes 
 

2.1 There is only one negative change (NI119): Self-reported measure of people’s overall 
health and well-being (-4.1). 
 

2.2 Health services are one of the most important services to residents in the district. 
Residents' perception of health related issues vary considerably with location and 
age.  The latter is understandable given that health often worsens with age and the 
need to access health facilities increases. There are locations which are some 
distance from health facilities or are located between two Primary Care Trusts (PCT) 
and residents find themselves being passed between facilities.  This added to often 
poor transport infrastructure limiting access to facilities will produce a high level of 
anxiety in some residents. 

 
2.3 Although these results are representative of the particular sample of residents 

involved in the survey, it must be assumed that this is an issue for the district as a 
whole. Therefore, in order to support the improvement of well being of Epping Forest 
residents we will need to support the development of work of One Epping Forest 
Healthy Communities Subgroup to ensure residents concerns and wishes are heard, 
understood and where possible acted upon.  
 

2.4 Additionally, at a local level, the Council’s Community Services teams will continue to 
work closely with the PCT and voluntary agencies, to deliver a wide range of activities 
and initiatives to address health inequalities across the district, including providing 

Page 91



   
   
   
 4 

targeted services to children, young people and the elderly and, addressing key 
geographical areas that are identified within the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. 

 
 Reason for Decision: 

   
  To identify what action is necessary in relation to the findings of the Tracker Survey 
  2009 and subsequent Comprehensive Area Assessment. 

 
Consultation undertaken: None 
Resource implications: None 
Budget provision:£6,000. 
Personnel: None 
Land: None 
Community Plan/BVPP reference: None 
Relevant statutory powers: Strong and Prosperous Communities White Paper, 9 July 2008 
Background papers: Communities and Local Government, National Indicators for Local 
Authorities and Local Authority Partnerships 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None 
Key Decision reference: (if required) None 
 

Page 92


	Agenda
	4 Minutes from the Last Meeting
	5 Terms of Reference / Work Programme
	Work Programme

	6 Key Performance Indicators 2010-11
	App 1 KPI Targets 2010/11
	App 2 KPI Mapping Exercise

	7 Epping Forest Tracker Survey 2009 Research Report

